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four people to defift : to which he made no reply at-all, IHe walked about
in the room for fome time, and then went down ftairs. Idid not {ee any
thing more till the prifoners were relealed. The only time I faw Mr.
Frics, the prifoner, was a few minutes before the prifoners were delivered
up. I walked out of the room and faw Mr. Fries upon the hzad of the
flairs, fpeaking with the marfhal ; fhortly after, the priloners were requeft-
ed to go down, but the minifter ftaying a httle wiile up mn the 100m,
there was a call made for him particularly, and therefore 1 went and re-
quefied him 1w go down. Shortly after, the armed- men went off, I look-
ed out of the window and faw Mr, Jarrett parading his light horfe in
rank Leiore the door. e then gave orders.to march, and they went ot

ATTorRNEY. Did you perceive any thing of the prifoner after this?

Wirxkss. No, that was the only tune I {aw lum during the day..

You were one of the commiflioners appointed to carry 1nto execution
twe acts of Congrels; one for allefling houles, and the other for laying a

direct tax!

Yes.

VWas there not, hefore this time, a general oppofition to the execution
of this law throughout the county of Northampton ?

After 1 had received my commiffien, which was fometime in Auguft
17938, 1 had received a letter from the fecretary ot the treafury, requefting
rie to tahe fume pains to find out fuitable characters to lerve as afleflors,
Idd, in coniequence of that, write fome letters to fome of my friends,
in the counties of Northampton, Luzerne and Wayne, which conftituted
my divilion : in Wayne and Luzerne, I found no difficulties whatever, but
received 2 number ot applications {uthcient, and accompanied with recom-
mendations,  In Northampton county I was not fo fuccefstul ; I had but
two recommendations frem that county; 1t was therefore neceffary for
me, from the beft information which 1 could obtain, to endeavour to find
men of {witable chiaratters 1n each townlhip; and likewile to get a num-
ber of blapk commufiions, in cale fome ot thote appointed fhould refuie to
accept of the othce. 1 recenved tnformation at Rt:adhzg, at the ume the
board ot commiflioners met, triem the ccmmiflicner in Bucks, that he had
recetved information frem a gentlemen i Yhiladelphia (Mr. Cliapman)
that he had travelled threugh a great part of Northempton county, and
that 1 every tavern where he ftepped, this tax law was the general topic
ol converfation, and that great pains was tahen to find cut who the per-
tons were that were fricuds of the goveinment fo much as to be allefiors,
i order to perfuade them not to aceept of the appointment. A lthouph
Ieo ™ not believe it was the cafe at that time, yet I found it vas the
cafe aftervards, '

Cross examinations Do you Lnow this traveller ?

MWitaess,  No.

Agiceadle to my doty, I gave notice to the affeflors (o mest me at a
ceioen place, T fhould have firft faid that I appotnted the afieflors. agiee-
Mle to the beft information I could collect, ! took cne man frem each
e nihip, fuch as was thought qualified for the bulinefs. 1 eat them
b commngions, and with them netices to meet me et a tune and place
4ppomted in oider to receive from me their inftruct.ons.

e then wentiened the namesof the alfefiers, and the townflips to which
thic Y wercy ppointcd.

A ol
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I appoinicd a meeting of the alleflcfs of the third difhii¢t at Nazatetls
on the 3d Thur{day in November, two of them did not attend, and fome
of the others who did attend begged to be exculed fiom ferving, T aflzed
their reafon, and told them I could not very well excufe them, they told
me that the people in their diferent townfhips were very much oppofed to
the law ; that they thouynt 1t was dangerous for them to accept of 1t. I
found that they, as well as the people, had a wronz idea about the law ;
and I was fo happy thut day asto prevail upon all thole that wifhed to be
excufed accepting the appointment, upon explaining the law to them, to
accept it.  T'he next day 1 met the affeffors of the fecond difirict at Al-
lentown, whereall attended but one. T had the f{ame difficulty there as
at the other place, and 1t was not without rhuch difficulty that thofe who
did appeary that they did accept of the appointment. I then left the
blank commnifions with Mr. Balliot, and requefted him to appoint foumne
perfons in the room of Mr. Horne, who had refufed  The Mondav fol-
lowing met the allefors of the other diftridt at Chefuut Hill townfbip.
Previous to that 1 had leen M. Kearne, whowas the adelfor, appointed at
Bafton ; when I mentioned to him that he was appointed an afieflor, he
told me that 1t would net {uit him to accept of 1t. 1 requeited of him
that be might name fom= fuitable perfon, and qualified for it, and 1 would
be willing to accept him. He meationed Jacob Snydery and toll me  he
would notice M. Suvderto meet me with che reft.. When I caine there
two of the afleffors did net appear, and one from Hamilton did not appear
willing to accept of it, butafier a great deal of explammyg and perfuading,
it was prevailed upen.  Juftas we were going, Synder came, he told me
that he had reccived his notice, and that he was not willing to accept it ;
that the people were very much oppoled to the law, and he did not very
well underftand it himfelf, but ke thought be would endeavour to get fome
mformation, and that vhen he came  there, the inormation he received
was fuch, that he was derernnnce b to vo afler e, and accept of the ap-

1

pointinent, 1f he were to rine ;5 mlea tn ordir o accept of 1ty for that
he had been wrony iivrmed about the law, 1 then went up to Wayne
county wiere I had v duiicidsyy except thut one alfeflor told me that he
was perfuaded vath ditiraity © aceept of the appointments As 1 was
going to Luzevie counoyy the aficilor trom Hamilion townthip, (Niclolas
Michael) came aror ey and kb me ohas i hod been obliged 1o iy from
his houie in the nichtto rue his | ey aind besoed of me to accept ef his
relignationy I wbl v T could nstacespt of ity but thar 1 would fee per-
tect juitice dope, Aty rearen he weat with me to Eatton, where we
i b/
went to fee for Bl Sicore nesy ettorney of  the diftrict, but not findingg
him at hom~, we v o fudze Praily wmoorder  to take his depolition,
. b
He besvea that T wondd iont the fascur Ui Tum o confider of 1t till the
L] ‘I L] s
next mornioe s I ddy acd ne mornin; he came to me and begzed me
“ Nre Foeilyy tor Gl ke put me o jady {0 that T may be {eeure of
Wy hitey for T s s anat thel peeple I 20d my tamuty aall be
romade I oodd b than Dowouid do no o dudch on sy for shat 1 had too
mach fricndfup forbhony tags Teosld give atew tues to the conttacls v
squelt b to el a wowsialy wmeetingy and T woudd meet him 1 the towin-
g, I requeicd Mo Honey to go tiore with me s 1 had reaton to ue-
Heve that s ool son arefe 4rom mibienreientation, whieh 1 {uppoied
LL t )
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voa few centewen, who had traveiled thoouzh
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the county a few days finces When we came to Hamilton towhﬂtip,
thiere were about 6o or 70 perfons affembled, three or four of them in
unifrrms, their armys was behind the door at the houfe of Mr. Hellers. I
then told them that I was come as their friend, and without any defign of
taking the leaft advantage of their conduct in oppofing the afleflors; that I
ad come to redd the law to them, and explain it. I did fo, and pointed
cut the tmpolitions prallife: on them. Mr. Henry aflifted me as much
as he could, but all to very lhttle purpofe. The aff=lfor after this again
bepzed mey for God’s {ake, to accept of his refignaiion.  As there was a
number ¢f thein that eonrlained againit the afleflors. I propofed to them
that thoash I had no authority to it, yet 1f I thought it would be a favour
to crant tiem that mdulrence te ele® their own afleflor themfelves, I
weuld grant hiin 42 appotntmient. They told me they wounld do no
fuch thing, for fu.d they “ if we do this, we at once acknowledge
thut  we wil {ubnut to the laws, and that is what we wont dos
I then enquired for a {uitable man, and John Hufton was mentioned; whi
was likewite elefled afleffor under the county rates. I cailed him into
a room, and requefted him to accept the appointment, he told me it was im-
pofiible at the prefent time, but he thould, whenever things appeared more
fuvaurable, fo that he could go through, be willing to doit.

I hear that the bufinefs 1s now done.

Attorwry, Pleale to relate who were the perfons that travelled
through that county, and encouraged the oppofiticn.

\WirTxEss. The luft week in December, or the firft of January I re-
ceived a letter from Mr., Heckavelter, the affeflor of upner Millord : by
which, he informed me that he was flopped by a regular deputation from
the townihip meeting, conlifing of 3 men. I fznt a e w0 Mr, Heck
avelier, and wifhed him to give notice to Mr. Schymer, Mr. Moretz,
anc jome of the leading men in the townfhip, that I would meet them at
fuch a time, and explain the bufmefs to them. When I came;s in confe-
quence, within 4 milesof theplace, I was requelted by a friend, not to go,
for that the people were {oviolent, that if Idid go I thould certainly he
killed : I replied to them that I would geo, Iwasnot atraid ot any of them.
I took Mr. Henry along with me ; when we came there, I found about
6o or 70 perlons coliected at the houfe of John Schymer. 1 f{unpele a-
bout 20 of them had Freneh cockades 1n their hats, red, blueand white.
Mr. Schymer then took me mto s own room ; there were about eight or
ten in the room.. Mr. Schymer atked me if I had feen the petitions, ha
gave one of them to e, and requetted that I would read it, which I did
in the prefence of another perfon ; there were but two 1 the company that
underitood Englith, While I was reading, thefe two men beganto {(hake
their heads, they {aid it was not fuch.a petiica as they had been wold, I
then alked them whether the general oppoiition was not on account of the
ﬁ:unp tax, and the houfe tax 3 thﬂ}f faid es, 1 then teld them there wag
not 2 word m this pet tion againft the 'félmp at ; they .cemed to be al-
together fatisfed, and faid that they had been made to believe it was, 1
then weat into the next rocm, where the people colleCted : fome of tham
apoeared to be extremely violent and very abufive, I tcld them I had not
come theie to be abufed by any body; that 1 had come there as a friend,
vo wnform them of the law which it was_important fhould be underftcod,
There was a report among them that ;lt-:'was*no law ; T7ead the law to
them, and explained it in the Gcrmati'{angpagé, and told tﬁgij;. it was thew
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duty to febmit to ite  Oue of them of the name of George Shacfies
jumped up betore me, and {aid, M. Eyerly, it is no law ; I told them that
if they did not believe me, they might enquire of Squire Schymer whether
it was or note  Mr. Schymer told them it was a faw ; upon which Shaef-
far replied, ¢ admitting it is a law, we will not {ubmit to it”. He then
farther faid, here I am,take me to gaol, but you {hail fee how far you will
hring me.  Upon vhich a great many of them jumped up and faid, yer,
By Ged, if they fhall oulr attempt to take any one to jail, we would {oon
have him out again.  Some of them made ule of very abufive language
araindt the affeffor, calling him a tory rafcal and the like ; and as the ai-
fe{for had requefted me to accept of his refignation becaufe it was not in
~his power to go through with 1ty 1 propofed to them, that if they had any
objechons agamit the alleflor, that they fhould elect ong, and T would give
Inm his appointraent ¢ to which {ome of the molt fenfible and moft mode-
rate replied, no, 1t it muft be done Mr. Heckavelter fthall do it, and fome
of the others {aid, we will do no fuch thing, if we do, we at once ackrow-
ledge that we {ubmit to the law, and that 1s what we will not, I then.
went over to the tavern clofe by, with Mr. Schymer, when Mr, Hecka-
velter came to me, and told me that he was in dangcr; that there was
three of the Shuellers were going to give him a licking: I requelied hun
to ftand by me, and I would {ee him {afes. We then went off

Eross examination. Did they come up to beat him?

WiTNEss, Yes they did, all three of them. Mr. Heckavelter told:
them he would not have any thing to do with them, and they charged
Lim fomething refpecting a liberty pole at Millars town,

Did they threaten to beat him on account of his going on with the

laws as afteflor?

No.

ATTorRNEY. But it was no private guarrel was it ¢

Wiryess, No, Mr. Heckavelter told me 13 was not,

When wag the m)t:l'ty pﬂ]t EI‘ELﬁEd?

"I'wo weeks betore that, but after the diffentions arofe,

Were thefe peles erected any where, but where this oppofition prevailed ?

With a fe'v exceptinng: there wis one place where the law was tully
executed, and fume others that fuHowed the example, where the law W as
execuied,

Was the lawn excented at Millars tovwn ?

It was nnt exceuted therey nor at upper Milford tilf about two or three
weeks apo at farthett, I then arreed to go to Millars town, where one
of the Shaefler's lived.  Mentioning this to an affetlor, (John Ruming)
he requelted T would not do it he told me that the people were fo violent
rhat he would ot o upnn s daties if any body would give him [.s00
w dnig, i he did, he maft run the riik of loline hs LWle, 1 then delifted,

Avrvorxey. Lhe laws were pot excuted ull after the army came up,.
and net befoie were they

The witnels was going on to {ay what he had been told, but hearfay
evidence was hadnftible.

—1 then went to Mr. Trexiers where I {aw NMr. Bobft, who gave me
mformation of Heldelverg, Wieltenberg, Lynn, and Low Hill: he told
¥ie that at a weeting at one of thole places the people had drawn up
paper not to lubmut to the laws : he then told the peojle wiat ticy werer
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certam‘y dmnﬁ‘ wrong, and that thev would bring themfelves into trouble if
:they went on that way : upon which they (the ptnple themletves) dtlhm e
the paper. He faid the {ame of Heuh]acrg He likewife mml"nr:d TS
that 1o the ruwnlhlp where he lives it was impoflible to execute the law 3.

At what time were the laws executed m thole tour townihips ?

Since the troops have been there.  He went fo fur as to fay that all in
the townthip opuoled the execution of the Jaw, except three or four.

Hearfay evidence {topped again by the councily becaule the conititution
provides that the accuted {hall be confronted with his accuters.

M. Rawle contended, that, as e wilhed to fthew the court and lu.v
the genera! ftate of that country, the hearlay evidence of Mr. Eyer Iy ia
his official capacity as commislioner, to wiwm reports of the alletlents
were made, was admifiible.

So far as explained the general temper was allowed.,

Wirngss, —In Penn townthip the affeflor did not meet usy he refufed
to accept the appointment, well aware of the dimculties that would occur,
and a general role was admicied to meet thofe dithiculties. 1 receved
information trom Mr. Balliott that he had found a man i that Lownﬂup
who was willing to execute the oflice. At my 1t_queﬂ he fent him a
commillion, but the moan was obliged, beture he ook the oaths, to FEtitFjL
..'lt a“u]]’ dLC]RI‘IHD .'It wds Impﬂﬂlblf‘ o dLJ it. .“]IS wWas iOI]]EtIH’Iﬁ II] Jd-
nudi Ve bt;'mf.'tlme "fta.I'Walda he Wwiote to me uf anocther man who w:.;ulgl
accept. I requetted him to fign his commudhon, 1 received intormation
while the maribal, Mr. Balliott and mylel! were abour the ceunty, that as
foon as the people n the tuwnlh]p knew thet he had receved his com-
miflion thev raifed g mob.

VWhen was Penn towaihip affeffed !

About ten days ago,

Courte Had you nnt rgafon to believe that, oWing to the oppolition
1n that townfhip the law could not be executed 2

WiTNEsS. It could not.

Was there fimilar oppolition 10 gny other town{lip ?

In Moore tnwulhip there was fomie oppohtiony but when the a%eiiog

wis oppoled he calied a rown rueering.  ‘Jhat townihip hus been aflciled
about two monthe.

I‘Jr. [ew 1s infiited that 1f (uch evidcnt“ WEeIre ZHUWF(] it wnuld be Nne-
ceffary to produce the commifiions of thefe ofacers, dLLl he could {ee no
) eafon why themielves could not have been prefent as evidences on the
prefecution, inftead of that teftimony coming through Mr. Lyeriv.

A, Racle contended that if 1t was nc{,cildty o provg ceinmiffione,
‘here woulld he nt} end to the enquiry.

ATTOoRNEY. VWere vou prefent at any other meetings ?

WrirNEss, \I{J‘—-—O.l the il or iecor: d ot Narch {aft, when the mar-
hal came to l\id?are*h, and teld e that he had procels’ abaluil A NUIH-
ber ot perfons yn Northampton county, he requei:ed mz Lo go with him -

1 went with hlm, firlt to Leht tewnfhip, where the marthal lerved pmcefsf
upon thote people for epputng the aflefinzents, waheii any difficaiy @ we
then came to Bethl-hem, aud then to Emaus @ the it houte the m'uihal
had to ferve W was a fubpena upon George Syder, wheiey alter bein,s

dbufed by the houfe, we were fnu-*n at and abufed by b hie Liad &

large club in his hand.
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Covrr. Did be abufe you before you fpoke o him ?
WITNESS, Yes.~Ie called us rafeals, highway robbers and the like
e marfhal told him he only had a fubpeaa to appear at Philadelphia to
give teltimony ; to which he anlwered, in German, he would be danned
if he would go. The marlhal finding he could do nothing with him, re-
querted Dantel Schwarts fen. to read and exulaiu it to him, and we leit
it with him to {erve.  We then went to Millars town to ferve a warrant
on George Schaeifer, but we were told he was gone to Philad:lphia @ we
went o Sewara's taverts The mar{hal and my ielf then went 1o Shank-
wyler's where there was at leait o alfembled n the oo, Not knowing
Shaukwyler, Mr. Bailiott pointed him out, and the marfhal took hin
while the matthal wes talking with Shankwyler, the crond mcloied umen
us, and abufed vs very much, and n a very menacing mauner, ACCOTINA
pied with an almoft univerfal cry of ftrike, ftrike, I’er:, fo that for fome
time we did not know what would be the conl"cqumcc. The marfial
this thwe was perfuading Shankwyler to {ubmit, telling hun the conie-
quence of oppolition : he at firft declared he would noty butat length b faid
he would do as J'II‘I‘LE did.  Some of the people then {aid, that 1f Shauk-
wyier was to be taken out of his houley they would finht as long as they
had of drop of Llood in their hodies. 1he marfthal then wurned reund to
the croud, when they were fo viclenty and told them that Mr. Baliiott
and myicll were under his protections 1 iorZor to mention that while
the marihal was talkiny to Shankwyler 1y the bary one of the perfons pre-
{cnt tore the cockade from MMr. Balliott's haty while he was turning round
to fpeak to the warinal @ Mr, Balliott ctd not for the nrefent Lnun bt
it was a blow {ome one had given . They then made back a litle,
Hanag found it mpoiizule o do any thing farther, Shank wyler promiied
0 meet the marfhal at LGethichems Ve then went out of the room, but
helfore we caine out of the houfe there was a terrible huzza in the 1oem.
1 then fent for a conftable at the requelt of the marfhal, to go with him
and fhow him the perfons and places of thsle againit whom he had pre-
cels. I remained while he ferved the procels’ at Mr. Irexler’s, and it was
there we firtt received ndormation that an attempt weuld be made the
next dw to refcue the pnl mers,  ye armved at Ln_tl] hem that evemingy
the 6th of March, and then the occurrences hanoened of which 1 ha.,c
given teflimony as far as 1 know.

Some converiation here occurred refpelling the teftimony of Mr, Tiver-
Iy where he {aid lie haa appownted affefiors @ My, Eyerly correéied him-
fclf, that he meant he had recommended them to the boards  But Mr,
Leuxis faid he thould expect the records to be produced to the court, that
the mantier and legalicy of the appointments might be {een.

SAMULL TOOUN, iworn,

Teflimony tranflated by Mr. Erdman.

ArterNEy. VWhere do you live when at hoina ?

WiTwESs, At unner M.l{ord in Northampton county,

1o you belong to any company of light horfe ¢

Yes, to captain Jarrett’s,

W jat 1s your ftatien ¢

A trumpsster,

VWere you renucﬂed by any body to go with a party to Bethlchem ; by
whoin, and at what time ?
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On the 7th of March, about 8 o'clock I went to™ the houfe of Daniel
Schwartz,

Dil you go, or were you {ent to Schwartz ? |

1 wet of my own 2ccord, becaule I heard that the light horlz were to
meet there, when 1 came, there wis one of the light horfe there, named
Samuel, the {on ¢f Daniel Schwartz. 1 afked him who ordered the com-
pany toyether, ana what they were about to do ¢ he {aid that Jobn Fogle
the Leurenant hud directed them to meet at Guile’s tavern, about 3 miles
from Bethlehem, on this fide ¢ he then afked me 1f I would go along. I
anfwered, no, Dantel Schwartz had another fon named Daniel, ‘who
wanted to vo alone, but the old man weuld not allow it, becaule he had
o regimentals or uniform,

Atrorney. What 1s meant by uniform ?

WirtnEss. The cap and coat.—Cld Schwartz then tcld his fon that
he ihould go'to a neighbour, and theuld borrow his coat and my cap. I
would not lend my cap, becaufe I told him I might want it myfelfy if 1
could gret an horie, as 1 told him I had it tn my heart to go.

Do you know what they were going for, or was it mentioned at all ?

{ did not know that mormog what they were going for,—If that is all
your excufe for not goinig, old Schwartz {zid he would lend me his horfe,
and give e a dollar 1a the bargain. Iis {on, young Daniel he would
not ailow to 20 iiloug‘, but he begging‘ very hﬂrd, he would allow him to
go as holller, to take care of the hoiles. They went, fome of them as
far as Guile's tavern, fome of them were In regimentals, and fome not,
I aid Schwartz’s two fons went, and when we came to Guife’s there was.
1o cthcers.

How many went from Scnwartz’s houfe ?

Six : Henry Staelery, myicl, Adam Stahlnaker, and Schwartz's thre¢
fons,—VWhen we came within half a mile of Guite's, we overtock a coma
pany of ritemen ot about 30 ﬁmng. '1‘[1&}' had no oflicer with them,
stzhlnaker was one of the lieutenants, but did not meddle with the com-
pany, nor was he in reZimentals, nor in arms. lThey waited about two
hours for Foyle, the firit lieutenant, but he did not come. Captain Jar«
rett was down at Fhiladelpbia,  When I found there was no one to take
the command, 1 determined to go no farthier : then there began a quarrel
amonz them, {ome of them were wiliing to go, and fome of them were
note otahlnaker and mvlelt then propoled to go to Bethlchem, and we
wotld brinyy them advice what was doing there, if they would wait an
hour, and then they wonld know what was belt to do. I then tock off
iy regimentals, and put others on, belonging to my brother-in-law, the
tavern-keeper, Some were willing to do this, {ome were nots They
then went after me, and told me that I muft put on my regimentals; and
take my trumpet. I refufed this, and told them, I would not go a ftep
farther unlefs there was ome oflicer who would take the command and
anfwer for it. They then agreed to it, and chole Andrew Schiffert. He
then faid he would accept ef it, if they would follow him, obey his or-

crs, or his advice.  They then went on to Bethlehem.

Ihd the number increafe ?

Thz rifle pafled by, but the number of horfemen did not increafe.

How many hor{emen were there ? '

There were only about eight er nine at Guile’s, but there were a.great.
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sumber of our people on horfeback, here and there one of them with 2
gun. When we were about half a mile on this {ide the bridge, we wers
met by four parfons from Bethlehem.

Had you fettled what you were going for !

I had 5o intercourfe with any one of them on the {ubject, becaule |
was always 4 good way before the troop.

Did you not hear at the tavern?!

No,-I did not hear any particular reafon for geing to Bethlehem.

Why did you go with them?

Becaufe I was afmd of gcttmg Into troutle, and yet I was afraid if 1
went there.

Why afraid ?

Becaufe I fuppofed they would take the prifoncls-

Why did you {uppole o7

Becaule I heard here and there one ordévo fay that ihey would nat
{uffer the prifuners to go to Philudelphia with the marllial,

Did you blow the trumpet as you rode a head !

Yes.

What paffed when you met with thele four gentlemen?

Thele four men periuaded us to go back again, aud there was here amd
there ¢ne tiat was williny o go back, amany whom was Schiffart the
captain s as “uey would not tcllow him, be la: d down his commitlion again.
They then went all tr confulion, till we came to the bh.lffc : all mixed
oue with another.

What d.! thole people do who refafed to go back

There came one to them and  told them that the two rifle men wege
prifoners, wh.ch iritated them very mach, and they fuid they would go
and get thom ; they would have thein, |

VWas this befar: or after the gentlemen arnved from Bethlehem ¢

It was arter thoy arrived, that they heard thofe two men were impri-
{foned !

What was the convesfation between thofe deputies and the people ?

I do not reccllect niuch of their difcourte, but 1 heard a good deal of
altercation between them @ they were determined that the pritoners Ilmuld
net goto Philadelpna, and that they would go to Bethlehem.

Court. What prifuners did they fay?

Witness. 1 do not know: they only faid the prifoners. However
thefe deputies brought them fo far that they agreed not to go to Beth-
lehem,

ArrorNEy. Upon what terms?

The gentlemen told themw they would bring themfelves into great trou-
ble, for an army weuld be marched againft them. There was no condi.
tions or terms made belides this, They then proceeded and chofe fome
people to go with them to the marfhal, to fee whether he would give up
thefe two men, and then they would return to their homes. They then
requelted me to go over as one of the deputies with two others: one of
them was Yiefly, a ritle man. I agreed to go, provided they would ve-
main there till we returned. We then went, but without any arms, but
we were {carce over the bridge before a great part of the light horfe fol-
Jowed us, and arrived at the tavern hctorc we could come therc.

ATTORNEY, What light hor{e was that ?
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I did not obfervé them all, for they rode very fafl, but it was the cori
pany 1 belonged to. \

Had any of the Bucks county people come up at that time ?

Not any that 1 know ofv—=YWhen 1 came to the tavern I did not want
to go in, bu. Mr. Mohollan and the others took us into the marfhal ;
but the greateft part of our company had come in, and therefore I counld
not tell vhat to fay for them in their behalf. When I came to the mar-
fhal. he atked what was their defign: I anfwered that I did not know ;
but Yiclly demanded of him the two rifiemen who were made priioners,
but I canaot {ay for certain whether he demandest any more prifoners of
him. ‘'he marfhal then read the orders whieh hie had from judge Peters:-
we then went out of doors,

Did not the niarfhal deliver un thefe two men.

Not a2t that nume,

Did you alt go back to join your companies?

1 cannot fay whether the two otbiers did or not. I remained where I
was.—About half an hour after the rifle company amived ; marched
round the houle, and formed in rank before the houle.

(ross examination, Was this before the two prifoners were given up.

I am not fure whether it was or not, becaufe I do not kaow the time
they were given up, for T went up In the room with. Mr. Bulliott and
Mr, Eyerly.

Did any horfemen come with the riflemen?

'There came pow and then fome horfeman, fome armed, and fome un-
armed, and they hurried into the yard.—When 1 faw them flanding in a
rank I went down ftairs, and afked captain Staeler how he came over
when he promiled not to came over. His anfwer was, that the Bucks
county people had come, and they all come over together. 'They frft
ftaid behind the houfe: the houfe was all in confufion.

ATToRNEY. What did they atk for, or demand?

WitnEss, 1 heard fome of them {ay that they wanted the prifoners
out, and that they would force themfelves into the houfe. I came out
of the houfe feveral times to pacify them, and fo did Shankwyler ccme
out twice to {peak to them.

ArtornEy. Did you fee the prifoner at the bar?

Wirngss. Yes, I {aw him once {peaking with the marfbal about
half way up the flair caie,

Did you fee him come down and fpeak to the people who were in the
yard ? |

As they wanted to go in by forcey he told them they fhould wait a
Jiztle, for that he would fpeak to the people infide a little more firll, :

Did you hear what he faid to them afrerwards o

No, he then went away, and they forced themielves in at the door,1
with fome others tried co keep them back all we could,

Did you {ucceed in keeping them out of the houle at that tuve ?

I {ucceeded in keeping them off, but one of them was very anxious to
zet in, and told the people that they {hould pull ofi their gloves, 1a order
to feel the trigger, and ¢ock he better.

Who was this !

_ 1t was Jacob Ingleman.—Staeler then formed his company in 2 rank.
One Heary Heover, who was Rauding in the entry afier they had foriged,
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feemed to think the time too long, and faid if they would only fend eight:

men to him, he would foon have the prifoners. The people then got my
one after another, and the entry became almofl full. 1 believe at that

time the prifoner at the bar came and told them not to be afraid, but
that they might now march on.

CourT. At the time Fries faid that, were the men in or not ?

'Fhey were in the entry, and a great many people were there: I was
in the back of the houfe, they then marched towards the flairs where the
guards had left. T'he marfhal was then quite alone, and ke told them he
would deliver up the prifoners. The prifoners then, tame down ftairs 1
believe, for Idid not know them ¢ I had not the leaft perfonal acquaintance
with one of them.

Was Fries any way diftingui‘hed by his drefs, or {ivord, or cockade ?

I never was acquainted w1th Fries before « he had on then a great coat,
a cocked hat, and a black feather: 1 did net' {ee him with a {word.

Cross examination. Did you hear what pal {ird between Fries and the
marfhal on tlie {tatrs? :

No, T was flanding belww; T only faw him there.
. Did Fries {peak Englith or Dutch ¢
Sometimes he {boke Enclifh, fometimes German.
Friday, 3iay 3.
ANDREW SHIFFER'T, fworn.
Teftimony tranflated.

Was you one of the armed party that went to Bethlehem on the fe-
venth of March?

Yes.

To what company did you beleng ?

To Jarrett's company.

Intorm the court and jury how you came to go, what vour motive, and
what the cbjeét of the expedition.

I was informed by John Hoover that all the light horfe were to meet
at Martin Ritter's at ien i the morming: I was not at liome when he
came, but I was infoimed ot 1t. I then went over to Ritter’s the next
morning, (on the feventh of March)and when I came there, I atked what
was to be done.  Theiwr anlwer was, that they were gowg to Bethlehem
to releaic the priloners.

CouvrTt. What prifoners !

WitNEss. [he prifoners from the marfhal.

To what tow nﬂnp do you bu]ong

To Salifbury. I told them that if they were to do thls, they Would
find%hat would be the confequences. 'The others faid that if they o
thggprifoners clear thai day, there would be notlung done, it would be all

b i thatif they came with arms agaioft them 1t would be all at an end.
li who went with armns?

If the foldiers weont with arms.

1:d not you enquire who had appointed them to meet?
No.

Did you not afk when vou were at Riiters?

No. At Ritter's 1 wanted to go home, but thcy weuld not let me,
: telling me that Iogle weuld be at Guife’s tavern, whereupon 1 agreed to

go fo far with them. Coming there, Fogle was nmot there, and.I and Sa-
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¥quel Toor ‘wanted to go home, for there was no officers thére. ~They
tken acreed to choofe an officer, when the choice fell upon me; I told
them I would not go with them without they would obey my orders; and
not fay any more about taking the prifoners from the marfhal. They
profefied to do fo, whereupon we proceeded to within half a mile “of the
bridge, and there we were met by four genilemen froin Bethiehem, and as
they repeated again that they would have the prifoners, 1 faid I wonld
have no more to do with them. They then went into Bethlehem, bt I
did not go with them, but in ubout two hours I went 1n to fee what they
were about : I ftaid this fide of the bridge 'nil then.  When I got to
Bethlehem I was informed that they had got the priloners out. I remain-
ed there about half an hour and then rode home, to that 1 know not what
happened. ,

Did you hear that the marfhal had takeén two tneén prifonersy at what
time and where ¢

I heard that two men were difarmed : T heard it on this fide the bridge.

Did you hear it while the rifle company, and the others were there toa
gether ! -

It was a perfon who cattie from Bethlehem that told of ity but I cannot
tell who,

Was it before the deputation arrived ?

I cannot tell, but I did not hear it before. |

Had the Bucks county people come up before you left that place where
you {taid on this fide of the bridge ?

Yes, I faw them ride up at about two o’clock,

Court: Was Jarrett’s and Stacler’s companies gone over the bridgé
when the Bucks county people went over ?

The light horfe were, but I am not {ure of Staeler’s.

Did you enter into converfation with the Bucks county people ¢

No, not any.

The evidence here was slofed fo far as related to the affair 4t Bethies
hem: Mr. attorney then introduced the following, preceding and fucceed-
ing events to fhow the {tate of the country, and the prifoner's intentions

JOHN DILLINGHAR, fworn.
Tefmony tranflated. ‘
ATTOoRNEY. Wlhere is your home ?
WrrnEess. In upper Milford, Northampton county, about fix miles
from Millars town.,

Do yéu know of any runtour or report in your neighbourhood that the
marthal was coming up to arreft fome perfons, before he came ?

It was talked of, as fulpeGted that fome pevfous would be arrefted.

CourT. On what account? e

I can give no account of that. The report wag that they. Would_’ﬁﬁ'
arrelted to be taken to Philadelphia. :

Was it reported, or any propolition made among the people that if any

body fhould be brought to Philadelphia, that it thould not be fuffered?

t was faid, that if any perfon was to be arrefled innocently, it would

be very hard for fuch a many and he ought not to be fuffered to fuffer,

And further it was f{aid that fomebedy had fworn-againft Shaakwyler that

he had two piftols and a {fword on his table, and that he had fworn thak

if the affeffors fhould come, he would fhoot them. I and my*néighbours
H ,
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faid that Shankwyler never owned a pair of piftols, nor did they believé
any were ever there except a traveller brought themn there. [He kept 4
tavern] I then heard that the marthal had arrelted {owe perfons at Mil:
Jars town. The following day (6th of March) captain  Staeler came to
my houfe, and I afked him whether he had been in Millars town,  He
anfwered yes. I afked him whether it was true that Shankwyler had been
arrefted by the fheriff.  (Becaufe at that time the term marsbal was not
known to them.) Staeler an{wered, yes, and that he was to be the tol-
lowing day at Bethlehem, and afked me whether I would go to Bethlehem
likewife, and told me that wmore people were going up to fee, 1 faid I
fhould alfo like to go and fec, provided the people would fave themfelves
from getting into trouble. [ then drefled mylelf to go away: Staeler
aflked me if I would not take my nfle with me.

CourTts, Were you one of captain Stacler’s rifle company ?

Witxnrss, No.

What company did you belong to ?

I'o no one particularly; unly the militia.a] then anf{wered 110, for
what? He then informed me that there were a number of people to meet
at Ritter’s tavern, whence he heard they were to proceed to Bethlehem,
and they would go there pretty early, to exercife a little, and that ] fhould
go in the ranks to make a {liow, becaufe lus company was not compleat,

Court, Was it mufter day?

No, but they had frequent meetings in order to exercife themfelves.
I then agreed that I would take my rifle {o far as that, As I was drel-
fing when he came, he afked me what I wus drefling for: T told him
that 1 was going to my mother in law, to fetch her {fome flax to {pin;
fhe lives in Bucks county, about a mile on tlus fide of Conrad Marks’s
houfe. Whereupon, he (Staeler) defired me to tell young Marks that the
light horfe were going to Bethlehemy and that he fhould go lLikewile if he
pleafed. Before I came to Marks’s, I faw a Tight horfeman crofling the
yoad into another road: when I came to Marks’s I faw only his wife and
children and a firange man thee: I afked Marks's wife what light horie
mnan that was; fhe anfwered it was her fon; 1 afked where he was go-
ing s fhe {aid he was going over yonder wheie they were allefling houfes,
Yo go againit the afleflors. I then left the meflage Staeler dire€ied me.

Did you go farther mnto Bucks than where your mother-inlaw lives °

No. 7T entered into no other houfe than Marks’s and my mother’s.

What time of the day were you at Marks’s ?

frhout oné o'clecks - |

D.d you not mentiori to Johit Schymer, Efq. that the people would not
ftand by him, and that he would not be fupported, when it was reported
that a warrant wasil wed again® him, but that if he remained fiimy he

would ?

I do not reccollect any uca thing.

WILLIAM THOMAS, {worn,
AttorNEY. Do you live in Bucks county ?

WITNESS. Yes,

IDid you go to Bethlehem on the {feventh of March ?

Yes.—On the ffth of March we heard that the affeffors were going
round to affels the houfes in Bucks county : they had aflefled a few of

the houles about already : my brother was at Jacob Hoover's, and 1 was
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chere when he told me to tell two of our neighbours to let the allellors ge
rotnd, | - )

W ere you not on the 6th of March defired to join the party going to
Bethlehem ? |

On the 6th in the morning i was at Jacob Hoover's and he told me to
go to Adam Broutler and Pet.r Coome to tell them to come to his houfe.

Un the road T met captain Kouder: he told me 1 mult come along back

agaa down to the mill, for his company was coming together ’thf:.l'& that
day : when we came there, feveral were met, and they were beating the
dium: pait of them were armed. There were about 15 there in the whole,
We then went to Jaceh Fries’s tavern ; then the people faid they went
to {ee the allellors, but I dont know what for.

Corrr. Where there any more at Frics's than thofe who came from
the mill ¢ '

 WITVEsS. Yes there were a great many more, 1 think about thirt}":
]1‘11:] Fries and Kouder then {ent {oine (two) hotfemen named JDhﬂ Getr-
man and' Conrad Marks, the former had a gun, to {ee st they could find
the affeficrs,

" flTTOR}.'I:'Y. What were they to do ¢

Wirnrss, Why, their direttions was, that if they cculd find them
they {hould bring them to Quaker town, or to Jaccb Tries's tavern. Af-
ter the horfemen were gone, then the order was for the ccmpany to go 1o
Quaker town,

Were the party pretty generally armed ?

A great many were not, and many who were not had clubs. I cannot
tell how many were armed, but the greateft part had cither arms or clubs,;
~ Was there a drum and fife ? |
There was when we were at Ouaker town—We a'l food in 2 rank,
and fired off) and hallowed huzza,  Oue party went to Eaoch Roberts's
taverny and the other to David Zeller’s, and {oon after we ywere there,
the alicfiors came along.  They were elquire Foulke, Jobn Rodrick, and
Lephas Childs, T was at Zeller's when they came along, and they all
began to run out of the tavern, When I camé out they had Foulke by
Ins horfe’s biidle, and him by one leg, and they told bim to get off. 1t
was cap.ain Kouoder that had hold of him ; then John Fries came up and
teld him to et off. Juceh Hoouver came upy 1 thinkbetore Fries, and tot
Kouder to o away aud not abnfe the inan, aid he took hold of the bridle
and fpoke to him.  Fiivs told Foulke 1o get off, he wanted to fpeak to
bim. Then Gesrge Mumbower came up, and ftood at the back of the’
others, giving onc¢ of them a knock with the butt of his gun, and told
trem to pull 'm of 5 Jucob and John Hosover told them they fhould not
abufe the man, for he would get o withonr. With that tha efquire vode
up with them to the fhed, and got off. Thev then went into the tavern
together.  'Then John Fries told him thacr he had forewarned them yef-
terday not to affels the houfes, and yet they had come to day apain § he’
tien told him that he fhould thow his writtngs, what lic bhad done in the
townthip,  Which he did, and Julin Fries read thew, and gave them to
him h;lf.‘k again. I then went into another roojm, and when I came 6111:
dgrain, Childs, the other affeflor, was isttingz on the table, with five or fix
about him.  When I came up to him, I told him that they thould not’
abufe him, for I ufed to know him : at this time they were abufing him ¥

L1
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AttorNey., How were they abufing him ?

Ry fpeaking to him; I do mot recolleft what they faid, but they
¢-1d lum h2 fhould ne: have gone about when they had fnmarntd hin
th: day before, and they made him promife that he would not come agrain
tll forsher orders-="till they knew how the law was. Taey tcld him
they thought they had as fit men in their townlbip as what he.was, and
they withed to choole 2 man an the fame townthin if they muft have
done. As to Rodrick, I did not {ee him.

ArtoxxEy. Dl you hear any cry of  five” after Rudrick ?

WITRESS. DNo.

Did you fee any gun {napped afier him ?

Ne.

Did you iec any thing relating to a travelling man named captain Seay
born ?

Yes, he was t'icre, he was ¢runk, and fome of them afked him whether
he was for libherty o-pgovernment, he {aid governinent ¢ Peter Gobble {aid
if he [aid that azamm he fhould be whipped, Lhey were all pretty well
drunk, but I was not drunk.

Was Fries drunk ¢

I do not recollect ever feeing him drunk : Kouder was, and fo micht
Fries fur what I kuow, but I had known him {ome time, and kunew he
was a {ober man,

Did you hear any talk about tories there !

Yes, they talked of tories and fumplers :+ Foulke was one they called a
tory, and () were feveral othorso—A youny fellow then went 1 to {trike
Seabarn, but 1 tpld him he fhould not ftrike a man that was drunk : I
knew himn when he hved at the river.  He ftruck him ance or twice, but
I teld him if he firuck him again, I would {tnke hime  Then we went
down to Jacob Fries's, and there captain Kouder told me that I thould
be at Muarks’ the next day, to go along with them to Millar’s town. It
Was now dark, and I had not feen John Fries come then, He told the
fame to the ret of the company., I then went home and went to bed,
Atfier I was hume about a quarter of "an hour, John Gettman and John
Fries's lon came to our houle, but I was 1n bed.  Gettman had a gun at’
my houiv, (he was a gunimith.)

W hat age was young Fies ?

About {:ftca,n or lixteen.—I weni next mornine to Marks' tavern in
confequence of a meflage they had left for me that night betore with my
imother. By ten o rlncl-». we weie all there, |

Was Juhn Fries there !

Yes,

He named 13 more who were there,

Younr Marks weat oil foon after fun rife to Millar's town to tell them
we were comeng,  John Iries’s {en went with us, but his father’s horfe
~ot lame, and he was obliged to go back with it.

Were all thefe people armad ?

Yes, all but Marks and old Kitne.—The prifoner had his {ivord with bim.

Covrt. 1ad any ene the command of the men ?

WITNESS. Yese John Iresbadthe command but he did 5ot cocmmand
tul Le got t) Dethlehem, he gave no orders on the road.
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" ATtorNEY. What was the fubltance of the converfation before you
went from the tavern ? |

Why, that they were going to Millar’s town : I did not know that
they were going to Bethlechem. |

Did you hear any converfation about the intention ot the march ?

Yes, That we were going to Miltii’s town, for fhould there be pri-
{foners there, Marks faid that he wanted us to fhow ourfelves.
~ What were you to (how yourlelves for ?

I do not know what for.

Were vou to aflilt to bring the prifoners down to Philadelphia ¢

I do not know,

What was the intention of the Northampten people ?

Wy, they had a mind to take the prifoners again : I underftood
that the night before at Fries’s and along the road before we got there.
;'Lbout threc Ot feur nﬁles trom old I\'Iarks', wWEe mot }'Oung' Marks ’ he
{ard 1t was not worth while te go to Millar’s town, that the prifoners

vere up at Bethlehem, and that they had all gone there.

Who had gone there ?

The Northampton peple—the light horfe.  Some was then for going
back again : fome, as they had come fo fary was tor going up to Bethle-
hem, to {ez what was going on there, fo we went on.

Who told yen to go on?

Old Marks and John Fries faid that as they were come fo far on the
read, they would go up and fee what was doingthere. Then we wenton
about a miley and ftopped at Ritters where they fed their horfes: there was
a liberty pole there.  Thes we went on to Bethlchem. When we came
to the bridge,. there the people had flcpped, there was fome riflemen and
fome light horle. Some afked the realon why they ftopped there : they
faid they could not get over, the bridge was fhut: then John Fries rode
npy and afked whether they required toll or not ; they faid, yes. Then he ¥
+old them to count his men, and told us to follow him.

Did he fpeak generally?

Yes.—The words ke ufed was, now bovs, follow me. I do not know
whether he counted all or orly his own men.

Did you hear any thing at that time of thofe men whom you found
tlieve having {ent three maen to Bethlehem !

[ Lieard of their having taken two or three men under guard.
VWho paid the toll ?

I do not know, we did not, we were all mixed together.
Did you not hear of three men being {ent forward ?
No, I did not.—I heard ot their having taken fome prifoness.
Had you heard before you come to the bridge of thele two prifoners?
No.
Did the whole party follow Fries over the bridge, cr only the Bucks
county people ¢
I believe only the Bucks county people, without 1t was fome few.
What became of Staeler’'s Riflemen ?
Why they came pretty foon after over the bridge.
Yeu were al} en horfeback 7

Yes,
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- Did not the others come over the bridge at the fame time it was opens-
<d for you !

I dnd not look back ; all that I can {ay, when we got up to the tavern,
they were pretty clole aftcr us.

W hat diftance’ is it from Marks' to Bethlehem !

About twenty miles.

When we got over the bridge, there were two men met us, and faid
we fhould not hurt them : Fries told them that he fhould hurt nobody
without they hurt him firt. Then Judge Mobolian came and fpoke
with him atierwards, but I do not know what either he, or Fries faid,
When we got up to the tavern at Bethlehem, the whole of Staeler’s rifie-
company were there. They marched round the houfe twice ; we did not fland
in ranks, we were feparate.  They wanted one to go up and talk with the
mar(hal, and they from Bucksand Northampton {aid Jobn Fries was more
fit to go up than c’er a man that was there. Then John Fries and one
Hoover went up ftairs.  Atfter a 'while Hoover came down, Fries flaid up
when he came down, lie kept dafthing and {wearing, and {aid force {hould
do: give him nine or ten of the beRk riflemen In the company, and he
would ftorm the houfe ; a great many of thém told him he ihould not do
it, he faid he would, Jacob Hoover, George Mitchel and Mr. Mohollan
endcavoured to keep him off.

Did this Hoover belong to Staeler's company ?

I think be dide—=T1hen Fries, when he came down ftaus, he fetched
fome writing down with him, that he got from the marfhal, which he-
read to the company. He {aid the marlhal dared not give up the prifon-
ers, and therefore that they would take them by force of arms. At this
time the Bucks county people were feparate from the others. |

Court. Who did Fries {peak to?

Wirtness. He fpoke to the whole ot them.—Then he afked, what
fhall we do now-——tske them by force of arms or how ? Several of them
{d, fince they come fo tarnow they would have them.  Frederick Henry
fard tince they were come f{o far, 1t was a damned thame not to have
them. Then Fries went up ftairs againg and faid he would go and talk to
them once more.  \When he came down again, he {ail that the marihal
darcd not give them up, without they took them by torce of arms.  They:
then told im that he fhould go and do {omething pretty foon, for 1t was
getting late.  Some of them faid it was better to ler Fries have the whole!
command of all the men.  Then it was concluded to go into the houfe,
and he {poke five or fixx times. |

Was it agreed thar Fiies thould have the whole under his command ?

I'do not know. 1 only heard what that one man {aid, and he thought
hin the fittelt perfon.

Did Fries hear this ! where was Le !

He was in the vard before the door, and near enough to hear 1t.

You did not hear him object to taking the command !

I do not know whether he heard what that man faid.—Then Fries,
when 1t was coacluded to go into the houle f{aid, For God's f{ake don’t:
fire boys, till 1 am fived upon firft : he faid this three cr four times over.
Thea we moved on to go in, he was before us. '

Covrr., How many followed lum ¢
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I do not know, but a good many at lalt., I could not fee who they
fvere, the houfe was fo full. Then Fries went up and talked to the
marthal about half way up ftairs. . Henry told me that Fries was telling
the marfhal that if he did not give up the prifoners, they would fire on
them, fo that they fheuld not fee each other for fmoke. After that, the
door was opened, and I faw fome of them come down.~~Some came down
while Fries was talking to the marfhal.

Then they were not all down ? | 1

There was fome not down ; they called for them, and they came down.
= Fries faid he was glad Hoover did not go in along with him, becaule
hé was too much of a fool ; he thought this would not have dosie fo well
as it did ; he did not want him there. |

Did you retire from Bethlehem altogether when you had got the
priloners ¢

Yes.

Ihd Jarret's troop go with yﬂu?

1 faw fomelight horfe before us.

Did you fee Fries go to the minifter after he was relealed ?

Yes, he went to him 1n another room : he pulled off his hat to the mi-
Siftery and told him he muft thank him that he had got out, he faid he
was out, but be could thank bim jfor all.

The marfhal was again ealled to reconcile fome {eeming difference in
the relation of the laft converfation Friesheld with the marfhal, and of the
prifeners coming down at twice., !

The marfthal faid that the laft converfation he held with the prifoners
was at the foot of the ftairs,—Mr. Fries declared that he would force his
way up {taire, if I would not give them up; I told him that this would:
be punifhed with the utmoft feverity, but that if he was determined to
refcue the prifoners, he fhould not go up ftairs, but that I would go up,
and order them down. Finding myfelf not in a {ituation to relift his force,
I went up aud ovdered them down.

Cross examination, Had any prifoners lett the room before you wentup
flairs 2

No.

ATTorNEY. Had vou any converfation with him afterwards ?

Yes, he returned and faid that we had not given up Ireman, that 1
muftdeliver him up with the reft: I told him they were all gene: he then
went out and returning again {aid he was there ; and went off. At that
time &l the prifoners went out.

Cross examination, Have you any recolleftion of what Thomas {wears
.that Henry told him, relpeing firing fo that you fhould not {ee each
other for {moke?

No. I cannot be particular in that ; I cannot recollectit fo as to give
evidence upon it. There were many very ferious threats, elie 1 fhould
not have given up the prifoners. *

Cross examination. At any time when you were in converfation with
Fries, did any of the prifoners come down ftairs?

No, not the Lehi prifoners : there might be others that would not fube
tit, but none from the room in a&ual cuftcdy, not to my knowlege s if
they did, it mult have been while I was {peaking to them i thecreud, it
was poflible for them to do itat that time.
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Were they not guarded?

They were in the room, and that guard remained theré till 1 wentup ;
it was placed there to prevent any perfon going up or down.

Cross examination. After this conver{ation with Fries, you went up
ftairs to order the prifoners down,  Were they all there in the room at
that time ¢

I believe {o, but I did not count them.

Well, upon your order did they come down; and did you come down
with them.

Yes, I came down with them.

ATToRNEY. Wlen the prifoners came down ftairs and you with themy
do you recollect having a fhort converfation with Fries at the fide of
the ftairs?

Yes, but there was but a very fhort one. |

Cross examination. Did you lead, or follow the prifoners in toming
down ftairs?

I am not certain, but I believe I followed them

GEOLRGE MI1iCHEL {worn.

AttorNEY. Where do vou live

I keep tavern in lower Milfoid tewnfhipy, Bucks county.

Inform the court whether there was any oppolition to the houfe tax
law in your townlmp.

Theve was great difturbance and di{contents refpefting this houfe law ;
it happened that there was a maeting advertifed for the 8th of February,
at the houfe of Jobn Kline, to conlult about the houfe tax law.

Were auv names Ligned to the adver.iiement,

None that I recclieét.—A number of the inhabitants met, 1t wag
pretty late in the day : they all feemed difcontented, but they were in
doubt whether 1t had paffed into a law or not. 'l here was {fomething in
the news paper of an amendment, which made them doubt whether it was
in force.  They formed an witrument of writing, but 1 cannot recollect
the particulars of it. It was drawn up by John Fries; I aflifted him.
We palled home =2fier that. I had no particular converfation with any
body after the paper was figned : it was figned by about g0 or 52 of the
inhuizit ints,

Do you recotlect whether Eaptain Kuyder was directed to givc any no-
tice by that mecting ¢

I do recollect fomething ; T think it was that captain Kuyder fhould
give notice to the adellors not to come forward till they had informed
themielves farther, whether 1t was a law or not.

(Crose examination.  YWho put up the notice of this meeting !

WitnEss. 1 am not {ure: perhaps it was myfelf.  John Hoover,
and f{everaly had talked about it, aud we thought we would call a meeting.

Was Fries prefeat when you agreed to call this meeting ¢

No.—"1his was on Frday: on the Monday following James Chapman
came to my houfe, and told me I thould tell Jacob Hoover that he fhould
give notice over the creek (1 live nearly ut the end of the townfhip) that
if they would choofe an affeflor of their own, they fhould be welcome ;
and any man that was capable of the bulinefs weuld be admited 1nto the
ofice. There was o.c Valentine Hoover came to my houfe that {anie
day, he lives over the other fide, and I told him what Mr, Chapman had
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told mé, likewilé, I informed Jacob Hoover that éay myfelf. Wlo op-
pofed it I dont know, but it was reported that it was not.adopted. Squird
Foulke fent me word to advertife a meeting.  Ifrael Roberts and Samuel
Clark called on me and told me. They informed me that Mr., Foulke
was of opinien that the people were ignorant of the law, and he would
read it for them, and explain it to them: this was the purpofe of the
meeting. S0 we advertifed the meeting to be held at my houie.

‘What tune was this !

Sometime in February toward the latter end, It was on a Saturday,
and there were a great many of the inhabitants at the meeting, fquire
Foulke and Mr. Chapman attended it. The people behaved very difor-
derly ; but I cannot recolle& any of the converfation that paffed. Jacol
Kline came in and afked mc what the meeting was intended for, I told
him that [ underflood by fquire Foulke, that the Germans were very igunos
rant of the law, and that he called them together, to read, and explain
it to them; I defired him to try to pacify the people, and I believe hé
did his endeavour; but it proved in vain: at lealt they did nat read the law,
I did not underftand that any body offered to read it, he thought it was
in vain, there was {fuch a clamour.

Did they fay any thing to you ?

After Mr. Chapman was gone; Marks afked me how I came to meddle
with the advertifement.

Was John Fries at the meeting?

No.—I don’t recolle& any thing afterwards till the aflefTors came,
which was the sth of March. They took the rates of my houfe and my
neizhbous.

Who were the alleflors?

Mr. Childs, Mr. ¥oulke, and Mr. Redricke—I went from home
the reft of the day, and the next morning when I returned (fixth ot March)
I heard thzre had been an uproar about driving away the afleflors. It
was talked of that they were going to Millars town the next day. Hear-
ing of fuch an wproary I thought I had bufinefs at Millars town. fo 1 con-
cluded to go and hear what was going cn: they talked they were going to
meet the Northampions who were going for the reliet of the Prifoners,

Did you know the names of any of the prifoners!

No.—So we came at Marks’s; (5tk of March) when we came there,
there was a talk at Marks’s houfe about going to the tavern above Emaus ¢
Marks faid his fon would bring worde We went on then till we me:
young Marks, and he beckoned that we fhould halt, or go back, fo we
did ; he faid he had been up atRitter’s tavern, and they bad-ftarted before
he came there. T

Who went with you ¢

He mentioned eightecen names,

Who were the commanders ¢

I do not know of any in particular who took the command.«-Some
withed to go to fce Bethichem, fome to fee the bridge, fo they concluded
to 7o on, ' '

Court, Did you hear John Fries fay any think about going on?

1 cannot fay who were for going on, and who were not. We werg
evertaken by feveral people going to Bethlehem on the roads

Court. Were they armed or not ?

I



[ 66 ]

None that I can recolle€.——When we got to the bridge at Bathlehers
there were 2 great many armed men, and light horfe, and two rode over
the bridge towards us, from the other fide. I did not hear the converfa-
tion that pafled at the bridge ; but after a while we went over to Bethle-
hem.

After you gotto Bethlehen, what did you obferve, refpecting Fries ?

. Fhere was a great many of the company thut was formed betore the
houfe, who feem to {peak out that they would have the prifoners.  Frids
went in, I faw him ftait to go in, but I did not hear who ordered him, or
who defired him. A fhort time after, 1a the courfe of five or ten minutes,
Henry Heover came outto us, and faid he was {ergeant of their company,

..and he was chofen to demand the prifoners.  He faid he went up fialrs,
afid fomebody gave hum a pufh, and had like to have tumbled him down
ftairs, and he came out in a great paflion. He went on in a great rage,
and I catched hold of hifn : he faid if they would only give him ten men,
he would ftorm the houfe. A f{hort time after thdt, I obferved Fries
come outy and he faid ¢ filence ™ tothe people there. 1ie feemed to be as
much among Stacler’s company as among ours. Ile then afterwards
faid, ¢ Gentlemen, an officer of the United States fays he cannot deliver
up the prifoners, unlefls they are refcued by force of arms : fo, be faid, if
you are willing, we will, I will go foremaft, but if we do, I beg of you,
none of you fire till they fire on us firfl, till I give the word, and if I drop,
then you muft take your own command.” He repeated thefe words, «t
leaft, once more. I heard nothing afterwards of the proceedings in, nos
out of the houfe, that I recollelt,

Was there fome time after this, a meeting held at Marks'’s ¢

Yes.

After the proclamation ?

A meeting was held on the 18th of March.

What was the object of the meeting ?

To choofe a committes of the three counties of Northampton, Bucks
and Montgomery.

Why thefe three counties ?

Recaule there were none clfe in the proclamation.

What was the meeting held for ¢

To confult what was beft to be doney and it was determined to leave it
to the committee.

Was Jolin Fries there !

Yes, .

Did you put any queftion to him relative to the affair at Bethlehem ?

. &« No. After the meeting I had fome converfation with him : while the
Aﬁbmmi’&tce was fitting I faid to him: John Fries, you never intended to
.~ refift the law, did you? He made me anfwer, yes, I did.

"+ *MWhat laws were you tatking about ?

?',W'c ‘did not, in particular mention any laws,

“Was there a meeting after this at your houfe, and what time was that?

It was on Lafter Monday, March 25.

What was the object of that meeting?

That was to appoint an aflfeffor. The one that was appointed was to

do the buflinefs, if he plealed, if not, the perfon they chofc was to de it, or
hoth together:
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Was John Fries at that meeting ¢

At the begmnmg of it he was, but I do not recclle® that he WAS at
thP tune thcy gave | in thelr votes.

‘Did he unite in the choice of the afleflor?

Several did not wait becaufe there was no oppofition, and they thought
there was no occalion.
" 'Did be, or did he not exprefs hunfelf as much againft the law as ever?

He faid it would not. fuit him to vote now, as he had been againi}
the law throughout.

'Did not many of thofe who had been oppoled to the law before, vote: |

N
for the affeffor now?’ ¥

r:.-. oy .
Yes. %

1
'i

Cross examination. At the meeting at Marks's, was it not gcncrauy
agreed that there fhould be a fubmiflion to the laws !

Yes.—After the bufinefs was over, they made mention of it, but T do
not know that they made any report of it.

Did not Fries, with all the reft, agree to the {ubmiffton ?

I camnot fay.

Courr. Was there any agreement to do if?

Why, I believe the people never knew to the contrary but there would
bf‘ a return made.

Cross examination, Was it not recommended to fubmit ¢

Yes.

And was it not agreeable to the meeting ?

Yes, I believe it was; I heard no oppofition to it ?

ATTorRNEY., Was not the return made in writing ?

Y as.

Did not ’fqu;rc Richards propole that there fhould be a fubmiffion figr
ed there !

Ne, 1 do not recolledt any fuch thing.

Cross examination, W”dS it a genera] def;on of the meeting to comm m
and {ubmit to the Jaws !

'On the 15th of ‘March we received the proclamation, and that evening
I ook it down to Frederick Henny's; William Thomas went with me :
I read the proclamation to Frederick Henny, and he was agreed ta fub-
nue 5 he muade no oppaﬁt Olle

Cross examiration. When Fries {aid it would not fuit him to vote for,
the affefor, did he {3y he continued in oppofition to the law at that tﬂ'nf:?‘

1 dou’t know tkat he did, but he teenied rather oppoled, at- that tlmb,

to the laws or the dppﬂlﬂtmt‘llt of an afleflor.
Cross examinatim. Was this proclamation coimsuanicated to t‘hc'ﬁ'lcet-
1 on the 18th of March? .

“es it was; after I had read 1t to HC..I.I” 1 told him to take it F;

otherso I thourhr it wus t”“”‘-" t cet a pezicton leat to the” Prerﬂ.cnt.
Y MLLh 51‘\_1 VAN, ' '

Artorvry. You are 2 prmmpal affeflor uracr the act for laying a di-
rect tax are you not f |

Yes, for toclve townfhips, (which he named).

How did the aTeffments o Forward under your care ! ?

Y befieve ju all but lower \Liﬂnd tire dTL.lTlH'"H rs were carrlied Into efs
fe X withous oppofition, or i a mmajoiity of tire tDV”lulIPS, except Toma

i
%

-
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little threatenings. The alleflor of lower Milford was taken fick foon
after he got his inftructions, and fo did not proceed.  His name was Sa-
muael Clark : I called upon him afterwards, to know whether he was able
to proceed or not: he thoush: he thould be able in a few days: I had
occalion to go to Newtown, and was {everal days from home, bhuat found
there was nothing done relpecting it; I found the people had had a meet-
ing, and there appeared to be great oppofition to the rates being taken.
"The day atter 1 returned from Newtown, Clark called upon me, and told
me be thought it was not fafe to go about, from the ditbofition of the
people at that time. T told Inm that I would meet him the next day at
George Mitchel’s tavern in Milford, and meet the pecple to know what
their complaints were. 1 met Clark at a houfe jult by, and he told me lte

.avould be in at Mitchel’s in a few minutes. I examined Mitchel, to know

what was their complaints: Mitchel figniled that the people were diffa-
tisfied that the afleffor was appointed without thetr having a choice: for
they withed to choole i themielves, I told Mitchel if they would choofe
a man cf chara@er, I would ule my influence with the commiffioner to
have him appeinted, and I defired him to give notice of it to Jacob Hoo-

~ver, I wrote to the commiflioner ftating the fitnation we were in, and

told hin what I had done, but he {cemed not to be willing to indulge
them with it.

Court. Who was the comunifiioner?

Wirrxess. Seth Chapman was commifhoner for that diftrict.—I told
him it would eale the miuds of the people if it were done. At length ke

<confented, but feemingly with reluciance. However they never chofe one.

Was 1t made known to the people ¢

I do not recollelt that it was.—1 met um at a meeting of the affeflors
which was held at the houfe of Joln Rodruck. On my 1eturn home I
was toldy I think by 'fouire Foulke, that the townihip was advertifed to
meet av Mitchel's, 1l [aid if I would atiend there e wouald meet me.
I zot there Letween one and two clock.  Juft as I got to the houle, ve-
tore 1 went imy I {aw ten or twelve people cuming from towards Hoover's
m.ll, about halt of them were armed, and the others with {ticks. 1 went
1nto the houfe, and twenty or thirty were theras I {at talking with fume
of my acquaintance that weve well difpoled to the iaw.  Conrad Marke
talked a great deal in German, how oppreflive 1t was, and much m op-
polition to ity feeming to bz much enrazed.  His fon, and thote who
came with him f{eemed to be very noiy and rude ; they talked all in
German, which as I did not knew {uihcientty, I paid but iietle aziention
to them. They weie making a grear noife ; huzzaing for liberty, and
democracy, damning the toiles, and the hke.  @let them go on, us [ {av
no dilpolition i the people to do any thing toward torwarding the tuli-
nefs. Berween four and five T got up to go out; as I palied through the
croud towards the bar, they pullied one anuther ugainit me.

Was there any offer wiade to explain the lawto them @

No, none while I fiatd; they did not icem difpoied to hear it

(ross examinativn, You did not {ay a word vo them about 1t ?
Mey Ldid note They did not mention my name the whele time of 1y
being therey, bot they shuled Eyerly and Ballintt, zid aid how they
had cheated the public, and what villains they were. T underftood it
was refpesting colle¢ting the revenue, butl did not underlland near
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all they faid. I recollect Conrad Marks {aid that Ctmgrcf:s had ne

risht to make fuch a law, and that le never would iubmlt to havc his
houle taxed.

Cross examination. Frics was not there, was he ?

No.—1hey {eemed tc think that the colleéiors were all fuch fellows ;
the infinnation was that they cheated the public, and made them pay, but
never paid into the *i‘LdiUI}'.—-AftEI' s ettiing through the croud to the bar, 1
fuppoie 1 was fittecn minutes mm.._ifmon with Mitchel : he faid per-
haps they were wrong , but the people were very much exafpcratcd No-
thing very maicnal lmppencd, and T aked Mr. Foulke # it was not time
to be guing. Uo Igov mto the Sleigh and went oft' ; {oon after they
{et up a dreadful Lusza and fhouts I ftopped at Jacob Fries’s tavern, and |
waited for Mr. Foulke, who foon came : Clark, e affeflor was hikewife:.: -,
there.  Alter talking a little more on ibe iuﬁjt:tft, Clark ihll perﬁﬁcd m i ’f
not h:w:l any thmg to do wiih 1,, L0y hf: thouuht lt was not iﬂfc
for him.  We thought 1t was belt 1o pive the U[lrcr afleflors noticey
as their allefinents were nearly finifhed, to meer us 2t a certamn day to
take the rates in that townihip, I then wrote to the other wllefiors, re-
quenm r them to meet at Quaker town, on the 4th of March. Rodrick,,
Childs aad Foulke met me theie: we w aited Gl evtmun, but no others -
cinie , o we ;h,'l‘t_t.d to meetlat my houle next murnmgdt 0 'clock. We
met, :wd I went with themn to Miltad, to Samuel Clark’s, but he was !,
not at home, It was thought bett for me to go to fee for Clark, as he -
was engazed in 2 moving. I went to Jacoh Fries's tavern to wait for
hun ; they went to Mitchels to tuke the rates.  Clark foon came : he told
me l.e could ACE undertake to wke the ratss, for that he might as well
pay his fine :£1t coft b all he had, for they were lo oppolea to it at any
rateythat he could not think himiell iate, for at leaill he thould receive fome
pilLate lny‘.v Finding he would not do it I faid no more.  John Fries
vas coni up jult then s he tolu me he was very g olad to {ee me : he told
ne that he u.mmlu,nd 1 Lizd been iniulted 1in th-,u' townﬂnp at cne of
their mecttngs o he was very forry for it: he mentioned ’Squire Foulke as
well as wy..lt*h': had he been there, he faid, 1t lhould not have been dene :
1 turned it of0 by this: that there was not aperfon among them that {poke
aword to me. T told him I theugit they were very wreng in oppofing
he law as mf*v dld he l:Jnmtu tnat he Lhﬂli 7t tht‘}' wer'e notf, 2 and that
be rates thould not be 1:'11\(:11 by the allcffors. I told him that the rates
certainly would be taken, and that the afletlurs were then in the town{hip
taking the rates. I repeated it to him, and he aniwered « my Ged ! if
1 was ointy 10 fend that man (votnting 3 one itanding by) to my houfc to
let themny koow they were taking the raies, there would be §oo or 700
men under arras heie i.u-nmm"f 1Mo .1.1 b‘r {us rife. He told me e would
not fubmir tothe baw, 1 told Liin 1 thou,;'ht the peeple-Hdd mere {enfe
than to ritz in arins to oonofe  the faw in that munner s if they did, go-
vernment muil cortainly tuke notics ol ity and {end an armed force to en-
force the Iaws. 1115 aniver was that ¢t they doy we will fooh try whois
itrongett,” T teld lim thev certainly would find themfelves miftaken
vefpeciing  their furce, he lignified he thought rot: he mentioned to me
the troop of horfe in Montgomery county, and the people at upper and
Lower Milford, aund ,.um(,thmg 'lhaut luianuy who were ready to join.

Elz faid he was very forry for the -oecaliony for if they were to rife, God

)
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knew where it would end: the confequences would be dreadful ; I told
him they would be obliged to comply : he then faid huzza, it sball be as
it isin France, or will be as it is in France, or fomething to that effeél,
He then left me and went off.

Cross examination. Did Fries appear to be intoxicated ?

No, not that I know. 1 fcarce ever {aw him intoxicated.—A fhort
time after he was gone, on the fame day, the affeflors came to Jacob
Fries’s tavern.  We then ordered our dinners there, and 1 believe 1t was
Childs undertook to take the rates of |acob Fries’s houfe. We had not
gore out of the 10om after dinner, till John Fries came 1n, he addreffed
himfelf to 'Sguire Foulke, telling him he was very forry to {fee him there ;
be was a man that he had a great regard for, but that he was oppofed to
the law himfelf, ¢ I now warn you, faid he” not togo to another houfe
to take the.rates, if you do, you will be hurt,” He did not wait for any
reply, but turned himfelf about, and went off out of the room. ¥ do not
recollet any thing farther was faid to him.  He feemed much irritated.
"} he afleflors coneluded to proceed upon their bufinels. A

Rodruck and Foulke agreed to go together, and Childs went by him-
felf : this was an agreement between themlelves. e

Cross examination. Hal Mr. Clark’s appointment been vacated ?

There had been no meeting of the alfeflfors fince Mr. Clark had re-
fufed, complaining that he found it inconyemient to proceed with the allefl-
ment.

Was this new arrangement communicated to the board of affeflors at all.

No.

‘[he council for the prifoners doubted the legality of the appointmen
of Mr. Foulke, fince the law had provided that an afleffor mult be appoint-
ed by the board of commiffioners, and not otherwife.

Mr. Chapman f{aid it was eftablilhed at the meeting at Rodricks,
which was cailed in order to fee what bufinefs had been done, and then an
arrungement was made that m cale of the inabiity or unwiilinguefs ot
Clark to do the bulinefs in lower Miltord, 1t thould be done by the whole,
and therefore it was done, without the place of Clarke being vacated.

Cross examination. Were there any minutes of the afleffors kept ?

T'here was no more than a memorandum.

AttorNey. When you had this converfation with John Fries, was it
§n any relpe:t founded on the alteration of the afleflors, or was it a general
declamanion againit the law !

He did not mention any thing of that at all.

Sururdqy .ﬂfﬁ_fy AtD.

Mr. Dallas gave notice that he {hould expet the gentlemen engaged
in the profecution to produce the records of the afleflors.

JOHN RODRICK tworn.

ATTORNEY., Were vou one of the afleflors under the dire@t tax law,
appointed tor lower Milfurd? |

Y es.

Yave you vour warrant?

—Yroduced ite Dated November z, 1798.

]Yillppoila you took the oaths the law direéted?

S,

~ Did you adt as afleflor in any other part of your diftriét previous to go-
ing to Jower Mulford ¢
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Yes.—There were twelve townfhips in our diftei@, and there were ﬁ‘lﬁ
affeflors to ferve them.—He named them.—We were all fix {worn at a
meeting held at my houfe, by the commihoner, Seth Chapman: ’fgune
Foulke got his warrant afterwards ; he was appointed, I think, in additicn
to Samuel Clark.—~We met the commiflioner on the 16th of Februmy,
when it appeared all the other townihips were nearly done, except lower
Milford ; at that meeting all attended but Clark.—The principal afleffor,
James Chapman was likewiie there. We were informed that lower Miks
ford was rot done, for Clark was afraid to go about. The commiflioner
told the principal afleflor that he muft inform the other aflefiors, that if
finy thing could be done in it, we muft try todo it.  We all agreed that
we would.

Was Mr. Foulk appointed before this meeting !

Yés, and he was prefent at it—Not fong after this, we got orders from
the principal affeffor to meet him at Quaker town on the 4th of .Ma:tlz;
and to go the next day to get the rates at Milford. There were only
three of us attended. We agreed to meet at the principal affeflor's honles
the next morning, which we did, and thence we went to Clark’s to have
him to go with us: he was not at home, however we proceeded on, taking
the rates, Mr. Childs, Mr. Foulke and myfelf, We had taken between
5o and 6o afleflnients when we came to the houfe of Jacob Fries.

Were the people at home when you took the rates?

All were at home, I think, except onec, and there we left a notice.
When we came to Jacob Fries's we met the principal affeffor. After dine
ner, while we were fitting at the fire, John Fries came into the room: we
had a room by ourfelves. He faid he heard we were come to take the
rateés of the townthip; we told him yes. He faid he would warn us not
to proceed, elfe we fhould be hurt. He faid he was forry for 'fquire Foulke,
and I believe Mr. Chapman he mentioned, for he always retpedied them
very much.  He faid he was oppofed to the law,and he would not fubmit
to it. He then left the room. He feemed to be a little in a paflion.
We got on our horfes, and proceeded at taking the rates: I and Foulke
went together, and Childs by himfelf to fome who we thought were quiet
people. We proceeded on till about {uniet, when we were going to the houle
of one Singmafter, and as we turned down a lane, out from the road, ve
heard fomebody hallow to us: we ftopped, and faw it was John Fries and a,g
five men more.  We {topped, and they came walking towards uss  Jobn
Yries was in the front.  Fries faid that he had warned us not to proceed,, =
and we would not hear, and now they were come to take us prifoners.
believe 1 afked by what authority : with that he made a grapple at the
bridle of my horfe ; I wheeled my creaturs round, and he joft carched hold of
my great coat, but he could not hold. 1 rode off then: after I had got a-
Eout two rod, I turned my creature round again; and he was a little way
from the reft. I told him I was furprifed at his condu&, that he had be-
haved fo. He began to damn and curfe, and walked back towards the
other men: he mentioned that if he had a horfe, ke vwould foon catch me.

ATToRNEY. Was he near his own houle then !

WirnEss. He was about two or three miles rfom it.

1 rode up nearer to thole other men: they had ftopped elquire Foulke :
&s Fries returned back to his men, he f{aid, inen, let Foulke £0 AS We Can-
rot get Rodrick ; to morrow morniny we will have him. I wiil have

$
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noo men together to morrow, and I will come to your houfe; and wiil
let you know that we are oppofed to the law.  We then went and took
the afllefment of Singmafller's houfe, Ve had awrced before we left
Jacob Fries’s, that we would meet the principal affeflor the next moiuning,
to feec what courfe we flinuld take.

Cross examination. Was Sihgmafler at home ?

Yes.—ho we net @ we fawd theu that it was nol worth while to at-
tempt any thing miovre, w2 could vot proceed on. James Chaminan len
wrote a letter to the commilioner to ffare matterse We hen agzreed o
quit taking the rate ut lower Milford at that tine, w2 we thoupit we
fhould not be able t doany thing,  Wien we wert L oine hciie tmcigh
Quaker town (on the 6th of March) Cephias Childs rode before v 1 a- d
[quire Foulke rode tosethar. \Whea we came to Quaker tovwn, Ubllds
turned into 'fquire Grifhth’s : we found a great nlany people armed v ith
guns, and with uniforims, {o I faid to Foulke, here ts Fites, and his com-
pany. I faid, we wont ftop if we can help it ; I rode throuzh them, but
when 1 had got half through them, they hallowed to me w flep ; a great
many hallowed, dnd came running on both fides the roud, fome with therr
clubs and mufkets to firike me.

Court. Dud they ftitke you ?

WirNEss. No, they did not, I rode quickly through them.

CourT. Did they ftrike at you !

I faw them runping to come to firike.—I had paffed Roberts’s tavern,
and when I come to Zeller's tavern, there was John Fries at the porch ;
he hallowed to me to ftop, for I was going to pafs by, and not to {top and
give myfelt up : there was another man with me. They fellowed me to
{top me : 1 ftopped and wheeled my creature round, and afked Fries what
he wanted. “l'hey damned me, and told me I thould deliver mylelf up ; I
told him as long as he ufed {uch language, I would not. 'lhere was or-
der then given to fire at ne.

CourTe. Who gave the order ¢
That I cannot tell, but there was two men flanding clofe together at

Zeller's door, they pointed their guns : as I faw that, 1 rode off

Cross examination. Then, as you were {o near, you can tell whether it

ras Yries or not who oidered them to fire.

1 did not hear him.

How far were you {rom the porch ?

Five or fix rod.

Were Fries and you face to face ?

The other company were flill coming up at this time : they hallowed
them to flop me. ‘Fhe laft I heard was, they hallowed out te get horfes to
purfue mey but they did not purfue me.

Cross examination. Yad Fries, or the otheripeople the gun at this time
that the order was given to fire ?

I cannot {ay that Fries had any thing in lus hand at that time, but
the others had clubs,

CourT. How far was Fries from you at that tume ?

I do not know : perhaps five or fix rods. There was an old man ftand-
ing with him.

ATTorRNEY. Have you feen thatold man {ince ?

Why, I thought I faw him, or fome oue like him the other day in the
city. 1 believe I have feen him in the court fince the court begans
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Before you met with Ties, did you meet with any opmolition that day
in takang the rates for lower Miltord ¢
YWhy they talked of giving as fome, but fill they gave it in: Nobody
"1cntnd 3.
{=ass examination. Who made out the hfts for the rates taken by you?
Syutre Toulke i—mthere were a great many Germans, fo I enquired, and
b uu!?.ﬂ sut it down.
When did you firlt know that the rates were not taken m lower Mila
ford ¢
On the 16th of Fcbru*lry
Did you krow of their being an intention of appointing Mr. Foulke
betore he was appointed ?
I dnnet Loow,
Was Fouike anpointed on account of Clark’s ablence, or merely to go
into that tu:".'nﬂnp ?
I underitocd he was appointed to aflit Mr. Clarke: he was appotnted
by the commiilioner.

CEPHAS CHILD, quabfied.

Were you one one of the alfeflors undes the act for the valuation of
houles

Yes.

In what county?

In Bucks.—FHa here fhewed his warrant, and proved his qualiiication,
dated November s, 1798.

At the meeting at Roderick’s when we were qualified, we had our
mflructions given us by the commiflioner: hie informed us that there were
b alfeffors to twelve townfhips, which we were all equally concerned in
a'Tefnng, and it would be proper for us to point out which townthios we
would feverally take. I chink this meeting was abut the Iatter end ot
D:cember, I made fome objedions, becaule I could not talk the German
fangoage s they fard that could make no differencey becaule we were ot
Lberty to call the others to aflift wse "Iy that T alicuted; and we all
arreed as to cur diltricys s Mofrd and Richland were aflioped to Clark,
Lok Hill-town and New-Batan.  Taoreed reciprocale with Thak o
Attt him, and he me,y as he could talk Gert i1, uud 1 JTH-town there
Vole many Genmaase Phis was agrecd o the srefeave of the wheley and
Pleatte Roareick T made the fune grecient wilte I beheve that this
Lod oF arrmeement was generally made by the wh le, to aiit each other.,
A condingly Clark and mv| H foced upsn a day wchen I thould come and

23t hiw r-u two days, and an ther Ume was apyointed for him to aiilt
wew ¥ ohal made fome bezioning moomyv own duirict before that day
canz, Before we feparated, the anelJor pitchel upon aa early day to
male our returns of what we had doney 1 ordor ) crrunune whether we
il proceeded rioht or note 1 wezot up to Clark’s agreeable to aphoint-
viznt, and fonnd he was not able to go on: I thuzivie attended to my
ey diriél,

ATTORNEY., Why was he not able to ﬂ'o on !

TIe was fiek and unzhle.—We met to make our returns at Redien's s
coernard Foulke, T think, met with us, I know nothing of his appomirs
ment. This was on the sth day of the Buocks court (Oth of Ttbruarv )
Nt kaviog eone thmu_fh our bulinefs, we were to meet on the 1 6t

K
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a‘;i;ain. Foulke, I underftood at the former meeting, had heen aspointed.
When we met, enquiry being made what we had done: Foulke told
James Chapman that he dared not go into the townfhip, for he underftocd
that fome threats were thrown out againft him, and he rather withed thav
the people would appoint fome other perlon, themfelves, to do it. The
commiflfioner did not feem to agree with it, but at laft confented that if
fuch could be done, he fhould not materially object: finally, he cenfented
{o far as to intimate to Jawes Chapman, that if they fhould make fuch an
offer, and appoint one, he would recommend him, if not, he faid we muit
g0 and aflift in that rownfhip. There were {fome propofuls made who of
us fhould gro, excufes were made, and then the commiffioner informed us
that we were all enjoined as much to affefs tliat townthip as our own.
Upon whieh he told the principal alleffor that 1f 1t did not go on, he was
to write to us, and we were to attend to the call. I received a letter
about the firlt of March, or the laft of Yebruary from the principal afleflor,
that he had bzen to Milford, and it did not feem fikely the aflefliments
could go on, and I was ordered to meet the reft in Quaker town on the
sth of March., Accordingly, Foulke the prnincipal affeflor and myfelf met
there.  We had word from two others that they were not alile to come,
We concluded to call upon Clark to go with us, and divide the townfhip
{0 as to compleat it 11 afhort tune.  "the next morning we met to begin
the bulinefs, we went to Clark’s but he was notat home. It was agreed
then that we {hould g0 on with the rates, and ]ames Chapman Wds 10 go
to Jacob ¥Fries's to wait for Clark.  The firlt houfe we went into was
Daniel Wiedner's, I went in firft, and told Iim 1 was come to take dawn
the rates, under the revenue act of the United States: he appeared to ve
very angry ; I realoned with him, telling hun, 1t he withed to read the
law he might: I told him the confequences of cppelition, but he mghe
have ten days to confider of ity and give in his account if he chofe to take
that time. He fecing me thus fnd, ¢ take 1t now fince 1t muft be done,”
ke gave me his account accordingly, and appeared contented,  He {faid
farther, % we have concluded not to take 1ty as we exvpect the act will be
repealed.”  He meant they bad concluded not to take till they knew
what Congrels would do with the Jaw. I made reply to him that T be-
lieved that was alread:; done, tor I had feen 2 report of a committee of
Congrefs, that it was inexpedient to repeal ity and 1t was not done.

Corrt. Did he offer to read the faw?

No. He made fome remarks, but I tld bim it was verv wrong, T
cannot tell what he {aid in particular,  One thing T think was, that the
afleflors were to have VETY extravagent wages. M It does not matter,”
he faid, © you may as well pive iy vetrn” 1 did not get on my
horfe 1l 1 got up to Micchell’s where the other two affeiors were, Wide-
ner went ont a little before me, and he was therc when I came, walking
ﬂbﬂut, i‘cemingly VETY 4igry; 1 Rgaiu reatoned with heeo Agnother ob.
jection he made was, that the howfes ef hirh viloe voas to pey sathing,
while {maller ones, and of {mall value was w puwv hiche I ivisot to fuy
that after the rates of Wiedner's land was tolon be reawndd and 44 be
had foroot, there was another piece of land: he then fut down with an
heavy ligh and faid.  ¢“They will play the devil with n.e ;) what hall we
do.” I afked him vuat he meant, he made no aalaers told him I hop-
ed every one would be as well coavinced as he was, 1 ook teveral houfes
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in my way, and went to Jacob Fries's. As I was going in at the d”mt
1 met John Fries, who thook hand wich me, t.ld me he was glad to {eg
me, and alked me to take a drink.  He came in again after we had dnnt;
dinner and {aid « T forbid you going to any other houlfes in the townihip ;
he then mentioned that Foulke and Chapman, or Redrick were men he
much eiteemed.  He faid if we did 2o to any other houfes, we fliould be,
or would be, burt.  We then prmumd to alfelss  VWhere Englifl people
lived there ap[Jﬁa:;:.l no ubJeLuou, cxcepe at one place.  ‘Lhe people there
Lud, hat if they did give in the account, there weie fome ordinary people
in the neighbourhood, and they would be {ct on by them to do them an
injury. that alternoon I went to David Roberts’s ¢ his wife feemed very
anxious, a »d withed her lufband had been there, for fhe faid I fhould not
go home aline. 1 went afterwards when he was at home, and he faid he
had nu objsction, unly for hus n..,.lghbuurs. After {fome converfation he
faid the per Ich: there had agreed not to let the ratw..s be taken yet: he
faid thev il already chofen an affeffor in their own townthip: I told
han I wendered they did not let him go on: he f{ignified that he was a
perion o a1 obnexious charader, and therefere they did not wilh to ac-
cept of him. I our return home, I cailed at *Squire Gﬁﬂlth’s. as I got
ot my hoife, his wite told me that they were come there to take us, and
that there were 4o or co men there, and fhe did not know what they were
about. A little gl juft after came i and faid that they lmd hold of
'Squive Foulle's hacle h) the bridle, going to take him: I went to the
windaw, and faw them all round him. I did purpofc to go out, but at
their pc-m won I ftaid.  The hitle girl came n again, and faid t.:ley had
taken nr. Foull e mto Enoch Roberts's tavern. After a fhort time Frles
came over into the houfe where 1 was fitting : he took me by thc hand '
and I rofe up ; he faid, Mr. Childs, you muft go with me to my men, as’
we walked Alunﬂ‘ he faid “ I told you vcﬁelday that you fhould not go to
another houlz, and if you did you would be hurt, aud we are now come
to take you prifoner, it we find that you will go on with the aflefTments.”
My an{wer was, we are obliged to fulfil vur ofiice, and we cannot do
otherwife, uulefs we are nreventeds I was endeavouring to inform him of
the mwner in which 1 had obiained the warrant, in hopes that I thould
prevail upon him to go on with the bulinefs, as Roberts had propofed, but
he would not hear me. Vihen we went into the I”JUII{lt.‘., ne addre[ﬁ:d him-
felf to his men and me ¢ heve are my men"—* here 1s one of them.”

Court. Dy this it appered that he had the diretion.  Did he feem
angry ! L

He appeared to be angry, but he did not appear to fhow any revenge
to me, or to talk angry.—1 do not recollect that I knew any onée in the
houfe, except the tavern kecper.  Some of them foon began to ule rough
lanzuaze. A perfon then came bebind me, and caughkt me by the collar
over the fhouldery and faid, ¢ damn you Redrick, we have got you now,
“ damiu vy you thall go to the liberty poie znd cance round it ;” the
houfe was tnen crouded as full as it could croud, and they puthed me up
[o clofe, that I could not turn round fometimes for a conliderable time
the perfon who caught me, feemed to wilh to keep bebind me, but he flill
ket held of me : durmg this time I had feveral thumps, which feemed
more with the knee than the fift. After fome time he gotto fee 'my face :
he damaed me that I was not Rodrick, but that I was the other damned
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fon of a bitch that he {aw fitting at Rock hill, he had mifiaken me. A
fliort time after thisy a perfon came up to me and faid « keep a good
hearty and you will not be hurt.” I turned, or endeavoured to turn to
themm and faid, * I am not Rodrick, nor did I ever affefs in Rock Wil o™
he faid ¢ you are a damued liar.”  With that there were [hll more of
them came up, aid prefled about me more, and more took hold of me.
‘There was a pood deal of talk, fome in German, and fome in Enchih,
I then told themn thet my name was Cephas Childs ; that I was not a
man known m we county, but I had no doubt many of them, though they
did not know my fuce, kuew my pame : by that there was fome who
knew me there as Coroner of the county ; that man then faid it he 1s
Clilds, he s no better than the other.”  He atked me where Tafielled s
I told hum : a number of them alked how they liked it wheie 1 hud been.
I told them fome of them had appeared dilatisfied in the hirfl inftance,
but as I believed, every man almoft in the townihips where I afleffed
were {utished, they again faid I was a damned lar, for the people had
told them that they would jom them in the fuppreftion of it, and my own
neizhbours would fi ht againft me. I told them I thought I kuew better
than thev ; that if I was well informed they would not do fo. “then
they began again at me.  Then they atked me if 1 had tuken the oath ot
alleziance to the United States of America: I told them I had: they
afked me when: 1 ld them I could not recollect the time, but I knew
1t was as fosn as the law required it of me: they afked me if 1 wasa
friend to the government of the United States; 1 told them I was: T.h{‘}'
then began to damin the government, and the governor, and fhoved m=
about, mnany of them taking their Maker's name in vam ¢ there then was
a perfon who {poke very good Englifh : they damned the houfe tax and
the famp act, and called me a ftampler repeatedly : they damned the alen
law and {edition luw, and fnally all the laws : the government and all
the laws the prefent Congrefs had made. They damned the Conftitution
allo,

VW hat Conftitution ?

They did not mention what Confhitution, whether of this ftate or of
the Unied States,  They damned the Congrefs, aud damned the preii-
dent and all the fuends to government, becuuie they were all tories, for
that none were iricnds to the prefent government except tories,  They
afked me it I had been out m the laft war : £t T told them the law
did not require me to go, and then 1 fxid T was under the tuition of my
puents : they {axd they had fought for liberty, and would fight for it
again,  Phey fiwd they would not have the government, nor the Prelident,
and they would not live under fuch a damned government @ @ we will
have Walhington ;” others faid ¢ No, we will have Jefierfon, be 1s a
better man than Adans @ huzea for Jefterfon,”

Who {aid o ¢

All of them.—They then m{ified on my taking an cath of allegiance
to them, alledging thut it I did {o, 1 thould not be hurt.  They 1iifted
on 1t feveral tumes, till at length I had no way to wave it, and then T afk:-
ed them what their government was. One anfwered Walhington ¢ 1
{21d 1 had taken an cath of alleriance to Wallington's government al-
readvs  Lhey then faid Jefferfon ; we will have none of the danmed
fiampiers, nor the houfe tax.  So they went ons  “Lhey faid they embo-
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died themfrlves to oppofe the government ; they meant to do it, and that
was their debgn m coming there, 1

W io {aid {o, and what were the precife words ?

I do not know who faid 1t, but the words were thefe ¢ We are deter-
mined to oppofe the lawsy and we have met to do 1t ; the government is
lay.nx one thing afier ancther, and itf we do not oppofe it, they will
Lring us into banda7e and flavery, or make. flaves of us : we will have li-
bertv.”  And then they mentioned the number of men that had joined
them, or lent then: ~ord that they would joir them. They mentioned,
fome an hundied, fome more, fome lefs, that they had there would do it,
befides, they bad wll Northunston county to a man would join them, ex-
cept lome teites as they caited tihem,  Between Quaker town and Dela-
ware river, 1 rec.Hect they fa:d they could rade 10,000 men if they thould
be wanted to mpui... the fedition aud alien laws. I camnot be certain,
but I think he faia (2s he {poke 1n German) and ifty other damned laws.
However I am wot certar as to the nnmber. They hkewife faid that
General Walhingten had fent.them account that he had 20,000 men all
ready to aflift them m this undertaking to oppole the laws. 1 bt‘ggcd
them not to believe it, for 1t could not be, and fomebody was endeavour-
iz creatly to impofe upon them : I thought I knew the {ituation of
things better, and as for General Walhington, I was fure he never wouid
undertahe fuch conduét as that.

Ir xv. id they fpeakin the German language at that time, or Englifh ?

A great many of them {poke 1o German, but one or two of them fpoLc

very goud Lnbl hy but they were altogether Germans, Tlis palfled
winle I Was 1D cuﬂod}

Cross examination. VWhat do you mean?

Wirtxess, Why Iries took me in there and left me in cultody and
went away. ,

Covrr. Did he order them to keep you in cuftoay?

Not that I know of.—"t'hey faid Gen. Walthington had certainly wrote
to them {o and fo. Que of them {aid he wouald be damned 1f 1t was not
o, for he had feen the letter from Walhington ; or fomething to that
effect.  During tius time they were conftantly pufhing me; one would
come to my back and gct his knee up : they would endeavour to pufh me
on the ftove, cne or twe l-d held of my hips and endeavoured to throw
rie down, others feemed reney tolick me, and particularly after this conver-
fation abnut Wafhinguon. "Abcut that time Captain Fries came toward
me and feemed very much furprifed : He faid, My, Child, I underftand
fome of my men have abuled and infulted you. He really did appear to
ve verv fertous; hie faid he would not allow me to be abufed ; he appear-
cd to be really diftrefied for the ufuage I had received, and if I would tell
him who it was, he {1id he weuld make Inm bebave hinfelf.  He then
told me to come into the rcom. He faid he relpeéted me, and did not
with me te be abufed. I teld him I thought 1t hard that he {hould leave
me amongft 2 parcel of intoxicated people. I do not particularly recollect
what T {aid, but he told me he hoped I would not impute that conduct
to him: I told him I was not much injured, and therefore hoped he
would nct think about it.  He {aid his men were civil men, and {eemed
to wonder fuch a thing had happened. I think he then gave me fome-
thing to drink. He -took me into a room, the fartheft fide of which
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feemed to be empty.  When I got in there, he demanded my papers
while T Lad been an affelor. While he was with me no perfun infulted
me, indeed {ime of them, when he camic forward into the room where 1
was pufhied off, ont of the way. I then told him all that Thad done, and
1eai’ ned with him, but notwithftandivg that, he infifted on my papers;
I then told him T had no papers about me relative to the allefimens.

! .
((ross examinatim. Who were in the room at the time the requeit was

made for the papers?

I do not recollect any body purticularfy, but there were.2 great many
crouded into the roem after me.—He infifted thu. I had the papes, 1
told him I had not got the papers, he faid 1 had, and he would ll&'\r’ﬂ‘thﬁ}n.
I told him I had no pavers about me, but what related to my oihce of
Corovner, I was gHing to deliver up to him my county tax papers, but
he faid I bad other PAPETS, I jaid I had not. He then lUkad on thole I
had given him, and faw Hilltown at the top, then he {aid Hoho! my boys,
we have vot what we wanted, and then turned about and went away. ke
felt the pocket book, taking the papers with him.” There was a. confi-
derable uzza made, and they moft of them followed him outof the room.
They were gone but a few minutes till they rufhed in again as hard as
toey could ruthy without ¥iies, and fome got hold of me. { ey brought
Daniel \Weidner along with them: fome had piftols, guns, clubs, &c.and
fome {words. They {zemed very angry, and were pulhing upon me,
while {ume endeavoured to put them off.  Wiedner came up to e, and
intifted on the return of the rate 1 took of him yeflerday, he faid he wduld
have it.  Tdefired Lim jult to acknowjedge to the truth, Did not he givge
it mefreely yefterdry : this while a perfon had hold of e, fome of thein
ttepped up and [aid it was fairs I then afked him, did T not fay 1 would
not take the meafure of your houfe by force, but you gave me the rates
with a tree will ¢ Yes, he faid, but I was not forced, and theretore I want
it again.  Sume of chem then went ont, and diretly others caine 1 and
shook me very had @ one came in and threatened me, and faid I thould be
ﬂ:ut; {ome |}mught L thetr g5 and fhewed them to Me, and told me If
T fhould be feen in Milford towntlup on the bufinefs, Ifhould be fhot.
Wewder went off. his peefon with the fword thieatened a g-::.od deal. -

ArroaNev, Whowas he?

He was (‘.n”::d TrInrks, tie leer. I bf:lieve him to be the famf- IMdn
I have fcen hereo—\While T was in this converfation, William | homas
came forward and faid he knew me, and that they fhould not abule me.
1 hat gave me an opportunity of talking farther, and then I reafoned
with them of the bad tendency of fich conduct, and told them that T re-
ally thought 1f 1 had the law with me, I thould perfuade them to allow of
ite. One of them who had abufcd me before, came to me and acknow-
ledged he had abuted me, and was forry for ity and wifhed me to forgive
him. I think his name was  Smithy but I am not fure. After paffing
lome time i converfation, Fries came back again with the tranfcript, and
delivered 1t me, and told me as necar as I can recolleét in thefe words; I
mut go home, and mufl never come back again to aflefs, or I fhould be
fhoty and infilfted en my promifing I would not doit. My reply was, that
from the pains I had taken, I had left the townfhip with a view of not re-
turning to 1t, unlefs compelled by authority, and from their prefent treat-
meny, if they ever catched mc going back without that authority, I would:
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iﬁve them leave tn fhoot me. He then told me, Foulke and VOl may 1t
form the government what has been done as foon as you pleafe, we can
ratfe 1000 men in one day, and we will not fubmit to it.

- Iid they fay they were oppefed to ail the laws ?

They faid there were a number of laws they were oppofed to, and one
of thofe laws was now putting in execution, and they appeared to think if”
that was {topped, the others would be. “t'his was how I underftood it.
The words were that they were determined to oppole the laws, and not
let them be put into execution; there were fo many laws coming on, it
was tiine to {top them, and if they were known to oppole them, they ex-

pedted the others would not be brought forwards.
Cross examination. \Was Fries prefent when thele words were ufed ¢
No.
Monday, May 0.
JUDGE PETERS (one of the Bench) sworn.

AttorvEy. Wil your honour pleale to give the Jury an account of
the circumitances of your iffuing warrants in Northampton county, and
of circumftances within your knowledge previcus to the examination of
John Fries on the 6th of April.

Wirtness. The Gt time I heard ofhaially of this uncafinefs in the
counties of Bucksy, Northampton and Montgomery, was fometime in Fe-
bruary, I cannot precifely recollect what time. I had heard of it before
as a piece of news, but this was the firit time I heard 1t otheially : it was
by depofitions being fent to me by the attorney of the daftrict (M. Sit-
‘greaves) relative to a number of perfons.  After that I examined fome
witnefles relative to ity and upon the whole 1 concladed to iffue my war-
rants againft the parties charged, Being much engaged in the diftrict
court, the attorney of the diftrict drew up the frrm ot the warrants foe
my fignature and approbation.  We had concluded, by way of eale to the
people, that thefe warrants fhould be drawn up in a form of order for the
defendant to appear before fome jultice ol the peace, or judge of the coun-
ty 1n order to give bail for their appearance at the circutt court of the
United States.  Neither of us then knew ol thole infurzents, as 1t turned
out afterwards to have got to fuch a heads  But I doubied myfelf of the
propricty of the form and fubftance ol the warrants, becanle 1 thought
that the jultice, or judge before whom bail wus taken, ought to be ac-
guainted with the whole cale, and ought to have the preot of the fact
hetore brny, on which the proot of the warrant wes founds I bhad
fome deubt ton, whether it was legally nght {or perfons taken by v
wairants to go before an inferor magiftrate,  Yor though a juftice of
the peace of any ftate has a right by the laws ot the United States
to take covnazance in the helt mftance of crimes againft the United
Statws, and bipd over the offendeis tu the preper courty yet 1 dwd not
think tiat, as fuch juftice had not had the original coguizance of the
matier, there would be a propriety n my ordering lnm to take fecondar
mtice of it VWhtle T was helitatingg on thas pui!‘.t, I recenved wtorman-
on ot the length to which, at theg vime,y this cppofition to the kvw hoed w,
rved, L doubted very much, and  this thought way afterwmds dearly
cotmmed to mey wnether toe mailtraes or thele countier, and pactice-
Larlv: Northampion, would choofe to take cogmizance of fuch enences, or

woule choots o do any balteods Conterain tionie Lhoe wes fro i
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the magiftrates, one of them a juftice of the peace, the other a fiate judge,
who had done themielves much honour in perfevering fo far as thev did,
in endeavouring to bring thofe criminals to jultice.  But finally it turned
out that they were obliged to abandon even every endeavour towards ex-
ccuting this bulinefs; So that the law, and the public authority, fo far
failed as it refpeted that county, that the judicial authority of the Unit-
ed States became entirely proltrate. I found that {ume of the very per-
fons who were charged before me were magiftrates, and I wifh 1 could
fay that they were the only magiftrates who were engaged in this bulines.
Thele were the reafons that induced me to alter the form of my warrants.
I found that too many magiltrates were conceined in flattering the pre-
judices of the people, and engaging in {editions pradiices, and encouraging
the people in thewr miftakes for me to truft them, and I finally found that
there were but two magiftrates that could be depended upon, and they
told me that they were infulted m the performance of their duty for the
United States: of this I had good evidence. And farther: it arrived to
fuch a pitch that I could not get one of thele gentlemen even to iffue a
fubpeena to examine withefles, and fave them the great trouble and ex-
pence of coming before me. "This was the opinion of thole two gentle-
men ; one of them wrote me, and the other informed me, that they were
afraid to perform fuch an ac¢ts They could not only not get perfons to
ferve the procefs, but they could not get the witnefles to appear belore
them, This I do not bring as a charge againft any particular perfon, but
as a reafon why the warrants were thus iffued, Another reafon was that
thofe people had taken up the fallacious notion that they would not appear
before me, and therefore I thought it belt, though this fhould not have
been my leading moctive, to convince them that every perfon in this dif-
trict ought to obey a warrant tiued by me, and appear at fuch time and
place as I directed ; the whole diftrict being to be conlidered the fame as

a county 1n refpect to a {tate.

I'he witnefs then produced the warrants, dated Tebruary 20, 1799,
One of which was read.

The mar{hal vrote to me ofhcial ftazements at fundry times of the dith-
cultics e met with, and at one time informed me that the prifoners had
been refcued, by force of arme. frem lis poilefhion. The account he gave
me it is unnecellary to ftate, being much himilar to what has been piven
in evidence: He took {ome engagement trom thole prifoners, particularly
thofe of Leli townfhip, that they would appear betore me, v hich, the pri-
{oners themfelves told me, was chearfully given, I underftocd frem them,
and other channels, that they feveral tumes attempted to ceme down before
me and deliver themielves up, but they were prevented by perfuns who
interrupted them, and would not let them come.

Arvoaxky. Was Jolm Fries brought before you after you got up
there !

Yes o I had previouwfly iffued my warrant againft him.

Was this the examination he figred in vour prefence? [Showing the
witnels Dhicss confellion] which was as follows:

The examination of Jebn Frics—=6th Anril 1399,

The e~aninan: confefles that be was on the party which refcued the
prifoners fiom the marihal at Bethichem @ that he was llo one of a party
that tock from the afleffurs ar Quaker town, their papers, and forewarned
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them agaiult the execution of their duty in making the affeflineits, The™

papers were delivered with the confent of the afleflors, but without force ;
perhaps under the awe and terror of the numbers who demanded them,
and were by this examined -and delivered to the afleffors.  He confeffes
that at the houfe of Jacob Fries, a paper was written on the evening
s receding the refcue of the prifoners at Bethleheimn, containing an affocia-.
tion agreement of the {ublcribers to march for the purpole of making
that reicue, but he Is not certain whether he wrote that paper: He knows
he did not fign ir, but it was {ubfcribed by many perions, and delivered
to the examinant :—He does not kuow where that paper is—7F he exami-
naat confefles alfo, that jome weeks ago, he wrote (before the affeflors
came wnto that townihip) an agreement which he, with others fizned, pur-
pol cing that, if an affellment muft be madc, they would not agree to have
tt done by a perfon who did not refide in the townllip, but that they
would choofe their own affeffor within their townfhip—A meeting has
been held in the townlhip fince the allair at Bethlchem, for the purpole
of making fuch a choicé: the examinant went to the place of eletion,
but left it before the eleion opened.—The examinant further acknow-
led res that his motive n gotng to Bethlchem to refcue the prifoners was
not from perfonal attachment, or regard to any of the perfons who had
heen arrefted, but procceded from a general averfion to the law, and an
miention to impede and prevent its execution.  He thought that the acts
for the affellment and collzition of a direct tax did not impofe the quota
equally npon the citizens, and therefore was wrongs  He cannot fay who
originally projected the relcue of the prifoners, or afiembled the people for
the purpofe—The townfhip feemed to be all of on: mind; a man un-
known to the examinant carte to Quaker town, and {aid the pecple (hould
meet at Conrad Marks's to go to Millar's town, I he examinaut fays
that on the march of the people to Bethlehem, he was afked to take the
lead, and did ride on before the people until they arrived at Bethlehem—
‘The examinant had no arms, and took no command, except that he delir-
ed the people not to fire until he fhould give them orders, for he was
afraid, as they were 1o much envaged, (hat there would be blood {hed.—
[e begyed them for God's fake not to fire, unlels they had orders from
him, or unlefs he fhould be fhot down, and then they might take their
own cominand.—That he returned the papers of the affeifors which had
been delivered into bis hands, back to the afleflors privately, at which the
people were much enraged, and fuipected him (Iries) of having turned
rrom them, aud threatened to fhoot him, between the houfe of Jacob
Yries and (‘}Llaht.i oWl

' ]OHN FRIES.
Taken Gth Aprl, 1799,
before RicuArDp IfETEus.

' S

WityEss. Tt s my conftant pradiice to tell a prifoner that he is not
bowsd to be evidence ugainft himfelf: 1 did not make any promile or
threats o extort it from hlm, but he chole to make a voluntary confef
hey which 1t they do not choofe to doy 1 commit them without it. I

1 am parti CUIall)f dehicate on this fubjest of confeflion, and I do not like
to tllCGLII"&bG ltl

"
n

AN

"
"
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jUDGE [rEpELL. The gentlemen of the jury will obferve that the law
requires a judge to examine a prifoner, and it 15 left quite at the option
of the man to confels or not. |

The council for the prifoner hoped, as it was a cafe of treafon, upon
which the law and conftitution was extremely ¢autious how evidence was
admittedy the jury would confider that proof of the overt act muft be given
by two witnefles independent of any confeflion the prifoner might make.
. WrTxEss, The prifoner appeared to me to be not at all difinclined :
his manner was that of a man not having done any thing wrong, but
perfe@ly collected, and poffefled of his faculties, It was read to him af-
terwards, to which he accorded, and, thinking a part not fully encugh ex-
plained, added the latter part,—1 have now brought it to my recolledtion
that there were three magiftrates in that county, inftead of two, to whom
we were peculiarly indebted for afliftance.

Cross examination. Were any others applied to befides thoie three ¢

Some were, but we found much difinclination to do the bufinefs, and
*herefors thought it quite unneceflary to apply tarther.

JUDGE HENRY, again called.

He was afked his {ituation, and the particulars of the oppofition being
fuch as either to difable, or affright the magiftrate from theirduty.

He depofed that he was an allociate judge of the common pleas for
the ftates He iffued a number of fubpmneas about the 15th of January
to make {fome enquiries refpecting the oppolition to the tax law : thele
were iffued at the inftance of Mr. Eyerly, one of the commiflioners, as he
and others could not proceed in the execution of their duty and particu-
farly in Leh townthip, The witnefles generally appeared much afrad
at opening themfelves : and he could fay that among the people, there
were many nuch oppofed to the Jaw. I agreed to meet a number of per-
fons at Trexler's, commonly known as Trexler's town: there captain Jar-
rett appeared with a part of his company of light horfe. Shortly after
the arrival of Mr. Everly, Mr. Balliott and myfelf, the people feemed to
be walking about, and looking in at the window, and feemed to make
game at us, and mouths : I oblerved Hzury Shiffert in particular ;—they
were moftly in uniform.

ATTORNEY, Was 1t muiter day ?

No : I underftood it was the gemeral converfation there that Jarrett
feant to difplay his confequence, and to ntimidate.

Cross examination. VWho did you hear this from, was it from the light
horfe 2

No : I believe it was from Mr. Trexler.

AtTorNEY. Did the witnefles feem to be afraid ?

Yes, one man in particular appeared to be in great terror : when he
was calletl up to give his teltimony, he cried like a child, and begged for
God's fake that we would not afk him, for that the people would ruin
Rin wheh he retarned homse.  Indeed all the witneffes were much agi-
tated.

Did you or did you not difcover a general oppofition to the execution
of this law ?

Yes, I did,

CourTts Was you not apprehenfive of danger ?

Yes I was from the threats which were given,
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Do you imagine there were any magiftrates in the county that went {o
far as you ?

Yes, feveral of them.

Cross examination. How many witneffes did you take the examination
of, at Trexler's ? -

I think eight or nine.

Did they do any thing to injure you except make mouths at vou ?

No, I fent for the captain, and requefted him to kecp his men in order,
for all I wanted was to exammine witneffes. ‘Tlere was no farther than
;nfult offered to us.—The captain aflured me, he would do all that lay in
his power. |

Cross examination, How far 1s Trexler's from lower Milford in Bueks }

Ten or twelve miles.—From Lehi to lower Milfoid ¢ Thirty.—From
Hamilton to lower Milford ? Thirty one.~From Bethlehem to lower
Milford ? Sixteen. Upper Milford in Northampton, and lower Miiford
in Bucks join each other.

JAGOB STERNHER, {worn,
’Xeﬂimony trapflated.
TTORNEY. Where do you live ?

In Macungy, |

Do you recollect any talk in your townfbip of the allefiors coming therg
to meafure houfes !

Yes, it was {aid that they were to meafure them.

How long ago ?

They talked in the winter about it.

What was the talk in your neighbourhood refpecting the conduét of
Mullar's town, when the afleflors came there to meafure the houfes ?

I was told that one man (inadmffible)

What was the general talk ?

I never went into company, and therefore I cannot {ay what it was.

When were the houfes meafured in Macungy ?

About three weeks ago they begun to meafure.

Do you know if any houfes were meafured before the army went up
nto that country ? _

Not that I know of in that townlhip,

Was you at Trexler's before judge Henry ?

Y es.

Did you hear any threats againft judye Heary, Mr, Eyerly and Mr.
Balliott by the peogle there ?

No, I did not.

Were there any there, who {aid they would come to harm, il they con-
tinued meaturing the houfes !

No, I did not hear any.

Did you hear any of the people fay, while thofe gentlemen were there,
that the alleiors (hould not come to meafure their houfes ?

(es, I heard {omne people fay that they were not willing to have theis
houtes meafured set, and they willied it to be told to thofe gentlemen.

Was you not delired by the people in Millar's town to 1nform the af-
feflors that they fhould not come into that townfhip to make the affeff-
ment, or he would be hurt, or meet with an accident ?

Yes, a man told me to tell the aflefior {o.
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Did the perfon fay any thing about vpiftols and a {word ?

Yes, he delired me to tell the alleflor that there was a man there whe
had piftols and a fword.

VV ho did he fay the man was?

He did not mention who.

Mr. CHAPMAN and Mr, CHILDS were called aguin at the fuggel-
tion of Mr. Dallas to be afked how the meufurement of a houfe was taken ¢

It was always in every inftance given by the owner, we never meaiur-
ed any houfes.  Size, length and breadth was told us, or the proprietor
had ten days to fend it in: we left a note for thofe-pecple that were not
at home.

Did the people who were at home in Milford mention the dimenhons
of their houles?

Yes.
My, Chapman proved the letter which was mentioned 1 hiz evidence
to have Leen written by him to the connmtlioner. 1.

Mr. Stegreaves produced and read the warrants under which thofe per-
fons at Brt]l hem were held: allo the commiflion from the Prefdent Uf
vhe United S S1aLes, appmn 11}1r onic of the commiflioners under that act.

Mr. LYERLY again called.

Cross examinatin. How fudid Fox live from lower Milford ?

Ii bower Sochon towatlitp 3 about ten mules.

Flow were the principal and afhitant affelfors appointed

At the time I received the notice from the firlt commulioner that was

appointed in the commitiion, the commiffioners were to meet at Reading
o the 22d of Olober. After & board were met, every commifioner
was defired to make a plan of s divifron, and to divide 1t into fuch a
futtzble numbir of affeflinent J:ﬁmn, as to have the law executed 4
sealenable time: at the {ame time each commiffioner was requefled to
make out lilis of perfons qualihed for the office of uffeflors 10 exch divifion.
As foon as this was doney as the law pives a.power to the Sccretary of the
Treafury to recduce the number of aflellurs it too large, the cderk mude
cut a lifty, and fent 1t to the heeretary of the Ticalury ;5 a it was aliu -
tered in the Commilioners book.  Scme few alierations were made iv
jome diftricts afterv ards, bat at the time the board was iting,  Afwer
this was done, the form of the warrant was acveed upon by tiie U -
miflioners, and ordered to be printed. They weie then filled up, ard
cvery walrant ﬁg.md by all the Commitloners, A rule was then wdep:-
ed to call 211 the alefoss together in each ditrid, and the Commitlioners
was to meet and o ldd]li} them and give them nudtinctions.

Mr. Davras, I prefume a record was kept, where 1s it

1 do not know ¢ 1t was leit in polleflion of the clerk, he lives at Reading.

frev the pu,cmmmn was idued by the Puelulent, wias dhere Lot 4
meﬁ-mig of the Commithone.s with the affeflors in lome tow nibnps ?

I do not kaow.

Hzs therey to vour knowledze, been any refiltance to the cperation of
the law {ince the iffuing of the proclamation !

I do not know of anv~-I was in Fhiladelphia,

ATTORNEY.  Was the countiy 1 a pacific fiate, except where the
army ma ched,

No.—After the Prefident had ifTued his proclamatmn I wrote up to thf
prieipal aficlior in Northampton county, and to Mr, Ealliat, to requels
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them to go on, and have their returns made in a certa’n time, and to give
notice to all the other alfelfors {o to do. I received an{iwer an from M.
Balliott that he had received information that 1t was impofhible to do the
buhnels 10 the execation of he law,

Arttornky. Did yvou enceavour to get the bufinefs executed ?

Yes. |

Did you {ucceed !

No.
Did you attribute 1¢ to the neglect of the afieffurs?
INo.

I'o JUDGL PETERS,

AtTorNEY. Did you not difcover manifelt figns of terror coming
from the difiricts where the army had not marched ?

WITNESS. Yes, 1n many inftances, {vme very {trong, 1t was even at-
tempted to raife troops to oppofe the army 1f they went up.  There were
one or two Inftances of tel‘timony given to me that troops weie endea-
voured to be raifed, and nothing, 1 believe, but the rapidity of the pre-
grefs of the troaps prevented 1is eatcuti{111. I did believe that unlefs the
army had gone th-'ough the whole ccunury, there would have been the
moft atrecious mitances or viclence.

Did not {fome of the witnelles give their teftimony under great relué-
ance, owing to fear ¢

Yes, 1 had, in {ome inftances, to {late the proteciion of the United
Htatts, and thea determination to lay hold of perfors who fhould threaten,
in order to imulate them: fome fo:d, after they had given their tefhi-
mony, that they were atraid to go heme. [ can really fav, that, in ge-
neral, they were the moft unwalling wiwefles I had ever examined, 1
got evidence that lome of them were forming aiteciations for adtually
oppoling the troops,  One mun was cven afraid bLecanfe I was in his
houfe, afking for fome reticthment, as, he faid, he fhould be fulpect,
ed tor Larbouring e however, aiter I had exprelled my own f._cuutt,r
he feemed fatisted.

NMr, Dallas gave notice that, though they willied to pive as little troua
hle on the part of the delendant as poilible, vet he {lould produce two or
thiree v'i*nc‘i'*t: 10 order to jhew that this wdifvolitien, which was mant-
felled to parnnie the aliellinent, was owing to the uncertainty thofe people
were 1n, rur thc red] cmfumc ot the ]d‘n, aud that the pritcner himielf had

dzclared that it was no Luw, and that they had no idea of oppofing Cen-

arefs by force of arms, but that they wilkied for time, 1n order to afcer-
win its real extitence, and if the law was acwally m force, that they wifh-
udy aziceable to thelr tormer cultom, to appoint alieflurs from therr own
icipective townthips: alfo we mean to fhow that Fries was perfectly ac-
cateicent aster the proclamation, and thet Mitchel was entirely miftaken
as o the expreflions faid to be ufed by Tries at the 111t'etil1g at Conrad
sarkss, However, as we wilh to have time pievioully to examine the
witnefli s we mean to bring, we {hall not be able to pmdu* e them at this
frare of the teial

M Rawii, then opened the conftitusioral defimition of trealon, as
conaitiny of onlv two parts: ¢ I:v_;.mg war againft the United States, ard
aidiy the enemies of the United Statess”  As it 1s enly the fufl of thele
fecias of treaton the prifoner is chargea with, 1t 15 culy peceffary to at-

1

°T.
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certaln what 15 meant by levying war againft the United States. M,
Sitgreaves has {tated that, levying war again{t the United States confified,
not only in a hroad {enfe of rebellion openly manifefted, with an avowed
intention of {ubverting the govermment and conftitution of the country,
but alfo with force of arms, or by numbers {uthicient for that purpofe, to
caufe an imprefiton of terror: thefe, either one, or all together, ufed to
prevent the ezecution of the laws, or of any particular law of the United
States from motives, not of a fpecial but of a general nature—is treafon.
This pofition I beheve 1s perfedily correct, and has already received the
fanction of 2 court of the United States, refpacting the infurretion in
the weftern parts of Pennfylvania. See 2 Dallas 348. Mitchel's cafe—
This doétrine 1s laid down in terms fhort and concife, and is fuch as is
founded on the particular authority of all the writers on Englifh law,

Page 35¢. Bradford—attorney. The defign of the meeting was avow-
edly to oppole the execution of the excile law; to overawe the govern-
ment; to involve others in the gult ot the infurretion ; to prevent the
punifhment of the delinquents, &e. |

Patterfon (Juftice)e—1 he firlt quettion to be confidered 15, what was the
general object of the infurrection ? 1f its objet was to fupprefs the ex-
cile offices, and to prevent the execution of an act of Congrefs, by force
and intimidation, the offence, 10 legal eltimation, 1s high treafon ; it is an
ulurpation of the authority of the government ; it 1s high treafon by levy-
ing war. Taking the tellimony in a rational and connected point of
view, this was the obje¢t. It was of a general nature, and of a national
concern,

Let us atrend, for a moment, to the evidence. With what view was
the attack made on General Neville's houfe ! Was it to gratity a {pinit of
revenge againft him zs a private citizen, as an individual ! No:—as a
private citizen he had been highly eltecmned and beloved ; 1t was only by
becoming a public officery that he became obnoxious, and it was on ac-
count of his holdiug the excife ofice alone, that his houfe had been aflail-
cd, and s perfun endangered.-—-'fhﬂy were arrayed i a military manner ,
they affecied the militaiy forms of negociation by a flag; they pretended
no perfonal hoftility on General Neville; but they infifted on the jurren-
der of his commiffion. Can there be adoubty then, that the object of the

infurrection was of a general and publ ¢ nature.

Page 340. Patteifon (Juftice) in the charge againft Rigol.

With refpect to the intention, there s not, unhappily, the flighteft pof-
fibility of doubt: To fupprefs the othee of excife,m the fourth Survey of
this ftate ; and particularly, in the prefent inftance, to compel the refigna-
tion of Wells the excile officer, {o as to render null and void, in effedt, an
act of Congress, conftituted the apparent, the avowed object of the infur-
rection.  Combinin thefe facts and this detign, the crime is bigh treason.

This you will perceive, gentlemen of the Jury, is not preventing the
execusion of @/ the laws, or all the authority of the government, but of
“ an act of Congrefs,” It is an ufurpation of the authority of the go-
vernment, and thus it is levying wary and 1s bigh treason. Taking
it in this point of view, this was the very object of the infurgents at
Northampton, and was of a public, of a general, and not of a privateor
fpecial nature. In the cale I referred to, the prifoner afted different
from the prifoner at the Bar; he acted in a lubordinate ftation; he does

not appear to be a firlt charadier in that trealonable enterprize.
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Gentlemen, the law thus laid down by the court upon that occafiony
was derived from the Englith authorities to which I fhall now refer you.
4. Blackilone, p. 81. defines that branch of treafonr of which we are now
treating— Levying war againft the King (fubflitute here the U, States
for King) is, pulling down all enclofures, meeting houfes, prifons or
brothels”’—Although bawdy houfes are illegal, yet by any individuals not
authorifed, taking the authority which alone is vefled in the government,
it is an ufurpation of the authority, and the ad being of a general, and
not of a {pecial nature, is treason.  Lord Chief Juftice Hale, whofe name
will ever be endeared by the piety, the humanity, and the found legal
learning which charadterifed him, has a chapter upon this {ubject of le-
vying war againft the King. 1. Hales pleas page 105, He fays to
march with colours flying, drums beating, &c. if on a matter of a pub-
lic or general nature, 1s high treafon, but if on a private quarrel or fora
private purpofe, it 1s not treafon. Treafon in levying war, by this defi-
nition, confifts of two forts.  Firlty marching exprefsly, or directly againft
the King’s forces: fecondly, interpretatively, or obftrutively; doing a
thing of a general nature. Page 133. If to pull down a particular
inclofure, it is only a riot, but if to pull down all inclofures, it is levy-
ing war againt the King, becaufe it is generally againft the King's laws, . |

Fofter, p. 211, Infurrections in order to throw down al/ inclofures;
to alter the establisbed law or change religion, to inhance the price of
all labour or to open @/l prifons—-all rifings in order to effe thefe inno-
vations of a public and general concern by an armed forcey are, 1 conftruc-
tion of law, bigb treason, within the claufe of levying war. Infurre@ions;
likewife, for the retormation of real or imaginary evils of a public nature,
and in which the insurgents bave no special :'nterfst,-_riﬁngs to effect thele
ends by force and numbers, are, by conftruction of law, within the claufe
of levying war.

1. Hawkins, Chap. xvit. Sect. xxiil, p. 37. is much to the fame effect:
Douglafs, 570. in the cafe of Lord G. Gordon. The cafe there on the
part of the profecution was an attempt to force the repeal of an act of
Yarliament, and this was called high treafon, although the defendant was
not convicted. Keyling p. 70. on the cafe of Meflenger; Appletree and
others, and 73, 1bid.

It will probably be faid by the defendant’s Council that this thould be
fimply confidered as a refcuing prifoners from the cuftody of the Marfhal,
and that is not treafon, and that a number of crimes of a lefs degree
muft be commrtted in order to make it treafon, as Arfon, Burglary, and
Murder. But Iwould obferve, that when thefe crimes are committed,
one or more of them, they are not component parts of treafon, but they
lofe their qualities and their name in the abforbing crime—treason. So
when general Nevil's houfe was burnt, it was {aild only to amount to
Arfon : to that it was anfwered by Judge Patterfon, were it not for the
treafonable purpofe with which this was done, it would be fo, but the
guilt rofe to treafon in the intention. Admitting it is a crime, and wor-
thy of a punithment, the queltion 1s, whether, or not, it muft be confi-
dered as one of the means made vfe of to obtain the end in view. 1.
Hale 133. If a man break open prifon, except where a perfon is conviét-
ed for treafon, it was ruled to be only a great riot : if {everal were ref-
cued thereby, it was 2 riot and refcue, except thofe perfons relcued were
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convitted for treafor, and where it was Without aay particular vidw
to the perfons themiclves, and where the prifoners were unknown, then
the refcue becomesa part of the treafonable acty and that, with other facks
conftitutes the perfon guilty of treafon: In 4 Blackftene you will indan
anfwer to what Mr. Dallas {aid this morning ought o be in favour of
the prifoner: to wit, an ignorance of the exiftence of the law.

Suppole everv man who would profefs himfelf ignorant of the exifience
of a law was exculpated from the obfervance of ity or from the confe-
quences of breaking ity to what would that doctrine lead ! It would be
tor the interelt of every man who wifhed to oppofe a law, to keep himfel
under the {helter of this want of knowlcdﬁc, in order that he might {in
with impunity—without knowing 1,  This is 2 miltaken fadt, and an cr-
ror in point of law. I make thefe obfervations, not becanfe I fuppole
that ths defence will be ferionfly fet up, or that, did it exift, you would
be in the lealt puided by it, but under the lmpltﬁmn that when you come
to examine all the fads, you will difcover that it was not fo.

Unlefs thefe pomnts which I have laid down are controverted, I thall
not trouble you with morc points of law, and fhall leave the obfervations
I am farther to make, to a later period of the cale.

SO ————_—

Mr. DALLAS.

Alay it please your fHonors :

CENTLEMEN OF THE $URY,

IT has become {o uncommnn in the ftate of Pennfylvania to be employ-
ed 19 a caule, uron the iffue ot which the life of a fellow creatura d- peuds,
that, I am co: 1ﬁdr1t, the court and juey, as well as the council on both
fides, are prepared to give a iulcmn, candid and patient attention to the
prefent inveltization. It 15, gentlemen, a qac"nun of Life or Death ; and
it what we have heard 15 true, that the priloner 1s a hafband, and a fa*her,
it 15 a queﬁlou whole 1mmortance extends bcyond his own life, to the ex-
iitence and well-berng of a miferable tamily.,  If 1 [hould manifeft there-
fore, an exwranrdinary folicituds to {ecure the attention of the jury, as
lons as the ocealiw fhall rrquire, thefe conhderations would, I think, fur-
nifth a fufficient escule : ver, permit me to add to my juﬁiﬁmtlon ano-
ther remark. It 13 not 0:11: the hie of Johu Fries, and the well-bemg of
his family, that are at {take on this tral 5 but, we all know, that the un-
prefhons made on your minus, anl w‘nmunlca..ed to the pubiic by your
verdict, mav reach the lives and families of many move uuhappy inen
now under ndictments for a fimilar crime. 1 muft contels, that I teel
a_‘;itﬂtuxl b}' the ‘i}E‘Ui‘PESt : ﬂJr, itt dptears lo awfu!, {o int{it‘emng, as it
¢ adendv dyes, © the court and audience, how mult 1t aflect us who are
the counal o0 the ptoaer, cCharged with the developement of every
princicie and of coeny falt that caa tend to anacquital 7 W\s 1t relates to
vhe Coaue l by th: '[fn-ﬂ_:'litiar, <he ditliculties are coamparatively finall.
Fhey bave bod @ aormalty anply o t"‘*}u(]]ﬁ all the tact ;5 to calcu-
late to h st lw- Jm.h.u-xd, and to pont their teftimony precifely to
the oa_ﬁ-t el tic Cuegee s Wy wa woe councl dor the prifoaer, ave ig-
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norant of the man and of his conneétions. Till you were Impannelled, we
knew nothing of the evidence to {fupport the profecution ; and could,
therefore, be little prepared to encounter and repelit.  Befides, in all our
enquiries for the means of defence, as well as in our examination of the
witnelles, we have been embarraffed by the foreign language in which
the parties have {poken. That {fome of you, however, as well as the op-
poiite council underftand the German, has heen a fource of conlolation to
us ; for, it is your province to decide on the fadis.

But thele are not the only obitacles wbich we have to encounter, I am
{ure I fhall not be milunderftood when I fay, that the profecution appears
to be ftronaly marked with the authority and wfluence of government.

It 1s, I grant, mcumbent upon the government to exercife 1ts powers
for the punithment of crimes; but it is eflential to a fair difcuflion of
every accufasion, that the adls of the government {hould not be effimated
as proofs of the prifoner’s guilt. Thus, though you find by the proclama-
tion of the Prelident (which, doubtlefs, he thought, with a wile and up-
right intention, was required by the extraordinary ctreumftances of the
times) that the difturbances in Northampton were deemed overt a&s of
treafon by his advifers ; and though this denunciation was fellowed by
the march of a confiderable army for the exprefs purpofe of fubduing and
apprehending the trantors; you will recollect, that yon are to decide
whether trealon has been committed, from the evidence of the witnefles,
and not from the opinions of the government. Agam: great inconveni-
encies have been experienced by many meritorious citizens, who relin-
quifhed the purfuits of bufinefs, and the pleafures of domeftic life, to
affift in the fupprefiion of the infurgents; but you will not allow the jrri-
tation and refentment proceeding from this fource, to transfer from your
judgments to your paflions, the determination of the caufe. Far be it
from me to contend that eutrages have not been committed, which are
difreputable to the ftate or fociety at large, antlto the charadter of Penn-
{ylvania in particularj or to endeavour to fhelter from the punifhment of
the law, the inftigators and perpetrators of fuch offences. Lvery citizen
is interefted, and is bound to affift in deteéting, profccuting, and punifb-
ing the offenders; but every citizen, let 1t be remembered, 1s {till mere
interelted, that even the greateft criminals fhould only be punifhed iu
the manner and to the degree which the law prefcribes. However we
may differ on fpeculative points of politics abroad, however we mnay be
difpofed to approve, or to difapprove, the mealures of adminiftration, and
however we may controvert or aflift, the conflitutionality, or the expedi-
ency, of particular laws, all party fpint, all perfonal animofity, muft be
abandoned when we are called upon to act as minifters of juftice ; or we
(hall, in the indulzence of a moment’s vengeance, overthrow thoie barriers
which are our own f{ecurity, and the pledge of fafety to pofterity.

Whatever you may have thought, whatever you may bave faid, what-
ever you may have heard, inother icenes, mult new be obliterated freim
vour minds, The character of private citizens, with all tie privileges of
private opinion and feeling; is here exchanged for the character of pub-
lic funttionaries, with all the reftraints of law and juftice.  Your opini-
ons as private men, will only be regarded accorcing to their intrinlic me-
It ; but your verdi&t as a jur}f will be forever obligatary, bEB.I‘iilg all tll:;r
authority of a precedents

M
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Though, then, a proclamation has iffued, an army has marched, and pe-
pular refentment has been excited, we claim an unbiaffed attention ; and
circum{cribing your view of the fubjet to the evidence, we confidently ex-
pect a fortunate refult.  What has happened 11 England upon a fimilar
otcabon, we think will happen here. The Britifh Privy Counail an-
nounced a traitorous conipiracy to the Britilh Parhament. The Britith
Parhament declared that the party recognized and confirmed the charge of
high treafon and thus the whole weight of public acthority 1n that coun-
tty, legiflative and executive, inftituted a profecution, which was, after-
wards, condudted with the greateft zeal and talents—with fuch zeal and
talents as the prefent profecution has difplayed, What was the cvent?
A jury (that ineftimable palladium) without fear, and without favour, ex-
amined and pronounced that no treafon had been committed. 1 allude
to the recent cafes of Horné Tooke and Hardy.,

I fhall, I preftime, Be excufed, if I intimate to you fome other difad-
vantages under which the prifoner’s cafe Tabours; tor, it is not merely
neceflary to prodiice evidence, to explain, extenuate, or refute the charge ;
we muft guard your minds againft any previous bias, any latent pre-de-
termination to cohwi€t. The accufed gentleman, and his companions, you
will recolledty dre not vpon their trial among perfons, with whom they have
been accuftomed to lives L'his is a difadvantage, wkich every candid
man will acknowledge. They are to be tried, likewife, by a jury, felect-
ed and retuined by the marfhal, the very ofhcer who has bheen perfonally
inlulted, and whole appointment depends on the will and pleafure of the
executive magiflrate—that magiftrite by whom the ofienders have already
been defcribed as traitors. T mean not to caft the leaft reflection upon
the laws of Congrels, mor upon the officers of the government; but to
make a general remark on the defective {tate of our judicial inflitutions.
The conduct of the marfhal has, indeed, been highly exemplary through-
out the tranfaftion ; and when with fuch powers he returned fuch a jury
as I have the honor to addrels, he mamfefts an impartiality and independ-
ence of charadter, that entitles him to the relpet and plaudits of his
country.  Nor is it liete that the priloner’s difadvantagzes terminate : but
I hope, 1 believe, that never till this day was the Prefs employed in a
bafe and {anguinary attempt to mtimidate the jury and council from a
faithful execution of their duty in a capital cafe! Sirce, however, the
jury have been fummoned; nay, fince the court have been {itting upon
this very trial, there have been the groflefty the moft tufidious pra&tices in
a public newfpaper, to warp your fentimeits, and to deprive the unfortu-
~nate prifoner of the benefit of the belt talents, which the bar of Pennfyl-
vania can affords On the other hand, a gentleman, whole abilities we
all refpect, and whofe long refidence in the offending counties muft great-
ly facihtate the progrefs of the profecution, is aflociated, without cenfure,
and certainly without being anfwerable, in the duties of the attorney of
the diftrit. While our ignorance of charadters, and circumftances per-
plexes the defence; his aceurate information and experience enable him
to probe every witnefs to the quick, and forcibly to corgbine and inter-
weave all the incidents of the tranfadtion. But his motives are pure :
fory if he does arraign ; if he does convidt; if he does punith ; it is be-
caule his patriotilm and public {ipirt enable him to {foar {ar bﬂ?f-‘lld the
little afteclions of a nieighbourhaod. -
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Gentlemen, in this {ituation we appear befare you gs advocates fon
the prifoner. I declare that as far as my mind Is capable of being 1M
prefled by a fenfe of duty, I feel a tervor left any thing fhould be left
undoune, or uniaid, which is effential to the caufe: and, therefore, compli-
cated as the difcuflion muft neceffarily be, aceept, 1 pray you, my fenti-
ments under the following heads. o

Firft, I will endeavour to eftablifh fuch points of law, as {eem to me te
be applicable to the falts which have been given 1n evidence. S

Secondly, I will confider the general ftate of the difcontents, and how,
far the refcue at Bethlehem was connedted with the previous difturbances.

Thirdly, 1 will take a review of the conduét of the prifoner in particu-
Jar, |

I. With refpe& to the crime of treafon, I hold the conftitutional aét
in my hand by which it is defined.  The gentleman who opened this pro-
{ecution, has very juftly faid, that the words of the definition were bor-
rowed from a flatute very much admired in the Englilh code ; but I do
not think that bhe has very jufty added, that, becaufe the United States
have borrowed the languaze of the ftatute, they have, alfo, adopted all
the inferences and expolitions of the Britith comts. It appears, indeed,
that Lord Hale (I. Vol, p. 132) thought, that even the Englith courts
hud carricd their decifions on the fatute oo far, and emphatically warns
the judges from proceeding further in the dangerous dodtrine of ¢ conftruc-
tive trealons,”  Speaking of palt cales, he fays ¢ thofe refolutions being
“ made and {ettled, we muft acquielce in them, but, in my opinion, if new
“ cafes happen for the future, that have not an exprefs refolution in point,
“ pnor are exprefsly within the words of 23 Ed, 3, though they may feem
“ to have aparity of reafon, it is the fufeft way, and :noft agreeable to the
“ wifdom of the great a& of 23 Ed, 5. firlt to confult the parliament and
“ have their declaration, and to be very wary in multiplying conftruétive
“ and interpretative trealon, for we know not where it will end.” It
fhould be premifed, that in that celebrated ftatute of 25 Ed. 3. on which
is founded our definition of treafon, there was a provilion made, that it
the overt a& charged, or the crime-fuppoled to e committed, did not
come, fpecifically, within the words of the ftatute, the judges fhould not
pronounce it high treafon, but muft refer it to the parliament, Hale, the
great and pood, applauds the provifion ; and when he fays, that the courts
have gone far enough, does not the firength of his expreffion imply, that
they had gone too far -—¢ Be very waryn multiplying conftructive trea-
{ons, for we know not where it will end.” Now, it is {aid, that becaule
we have brought the words ¢ levying war” from the Englith ftatute, we,
therefore, adopt dll the interpretsiions of the Englifh courts ; but I deny
the propofition, becaufe 1 thinkit'is dargerous as well to the policy of our
conftitution as to rights of individuals, In the {ame ftatute of the 235
Ed. 1. there is another crime, called compafling the king's death; and
levyinz war has been conftrued to be 2n overt alt of that {pecies of trea-
fon. Hence the gentleman will find that there is fome” confufion in the
Englifh books on the dodrine of levying wary confidering it fometimes as
a fubftantive and independent of treafon, and at other times conlidering it
mercly as evidence of a traitorous delign againft the life of the monarch.
It is mmoffible to conceive, indeed, any thing more abfurd than conftruc-
tive trealdn, as it has been applicd to compaliing the death of the kin{.;‘_‘
Y ~ A3
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Any man who fheuld ufe a fingle expreflion, a loofe word, among friends,
or enemies, that could be tortured, by the melt circuitous procefs, into any
thing like a with for the king’s death, was termed a trattor.  In Black-
flone’s Commentaries, it is mentioned, that an innkeeper, ludicroufly de-
clared that his fon was heir to the crown ; meaning that he was helir to the
tavern, which had the lign of a crown; yet, the expreflion was conftrued
into treafon, and the man luftered as a traitor.  In another inftance, the
king killed a decr belonging to one of his poor fubjects, who upon the firft
impulfe of his refentment, withed the deer, horns and all; 1n the king’s
belly 5.and the man was al{o hanged 2s a trattor.  So far will conftruéti-
on o, and, in {uch a manner may a man's life be endangered ! If conftruc-
tive trealons are adinitted in this country, no man will be fafe: It may
deftroy my life ; it may deftroy your's.

In England this {pecies of treafon is conlidered in two lights ; levying
war againft the perfon of the monarch, and levymg war againft his autho-
rity. I with you to know precilely upon what footing this diftin&ion
prevails in Eagland, becaufe I {hall afk you prelently, what {pecies of
treafon ourht to be confidered as adopted by the principles, as well as
the terms ol our conftitution.  Levying war againit the perien of the mo-
narch confifts in any attempt to dethvone hun; either with a view to
change the government, or merely to {upplant the perfon who adminifters
it.  Thealt is unequivocay, and meets the common fenfe of every man.
But levying war againft us authority, is {o indefinite, that any thing and
every thing may be made trealon ; the intemperance of a mob, as well as
the hoftility of an army. Indcpendent of all technical reafoning, then,
let me afk you, upon the fuggeltions of common fenfe, whether you per-
ceive more in the recent occurrences than a gieat rict; a lawlefs difturb-
ance of the public peace, a daring refcue ! Was there in the mind of any
man, till the denunciation contained in the proclamation of the Prefident,
and the maich of the avmy, an wea that treafon had been committed ?
Tl then, the guiltin obltructing the exccut: n of the laws was not deno-
minated treafon, nor was the puntthment exnected, death!

In order, however, to examine this point of law more minutely, and to
apply 1t to the facts, let me obferve that from the Enghil books (whofe
authority, however, 1s not inplicitly admitted) two general propofitions are
to be colledted : '

Firfty The intention muft be to levy war.

Secondlyy, War mult be actually levyed against the government,

When 1 fay, ewphatically, that the smtention muft be to levy war, L
mecan that the intention, free of all conftrudtive matter, muft be to com-
mit that 8efcription of crime, which the gentleman concerned for the pro-
fecution calls * levying war,”  ¥athout that piecife intentiony however
crinunal the intention may be in other vefpecis; the offender cannot be
guilty of treafon. A man, or a mob, may intond to commit a crime ; a
an may be armed, or a mob may be arraved, for the purpole; and the
utmolt force may be ufed to accomplilh it; buot it is no treafon, unlefs
the intention was treafonably to levy war: thoush it may be arfon; or
it may be rioty, &kc. If the avowed object 15 to {ubvert the government ;
to drive Congrefs from its legitlative function ; to {eize the Prefident, &c.
aund nftead of the eltablithed order of things to introduce anarchy, or mo-
narchy; the act would be plainly and unequivocaliy within the meaning of .
levying wars.
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It is true, that the Englifh books go further ; and confider an attempt
by force to obftru&t the execution of all laws, or to compel the repeal
of a particular law, as a conftructive tiealon within the defcription of le-
vying war.  But the obltruction of @/ /aws 15, in facl, an attempt to
fubvert the government, and to compel the repeal of a law, is a very dif-
ferent thing from a vemporary interference withits executions  Conceding
therefore, as far as the Englifh authorities po, and as far furely, as the in-
terefts-of our government can require, there 1s no precedent of a conftruc-
tive trealon to warrant a conviciion in the prefent cale ; the oppofition was
not dirclted againit all laws ; nor was there any force employed to com-
pel a repeal of the obnoxious A&, In Foster 211, as read by Mr.
Rawle, you will find the reference 1s particularly made to the cafe of
torcing the repeal ot a law, or laws, &c.and nata word about oppofition to
the execution of a particular law. What, then were the origin and cha-
racter of the late rikng of the people ! Was 1t not an oppofition given to
certain ofhcers merely from u doubt of the exifience ot the law ; or till the
people had afcertained whether other counties conformed to the affefl-
ments, or till the inhabitants of townf{bips were indulged in appointing
their own afleffors? Let me afk you, whether thefe charateriltics are
widhin the fcope of the law of levving war? Remember what Hale fays,
¢ Do not lat aparity of realoning allure you ; be very wary that you donot
add to the catalogue of conftructive treatons. Judge Black{tone too, has been
quoted by Mr. Rawle (Vol 4. p. 81) where he Ipeaks of treafon as an
¢ attempt to reform religion, or the laws;” but I intreat your attention
to the diftin&tion which the paffage 1tleltis calculated to eftablith, Eve-
ry one knows that the term reform the laws, means rspeal the laws, The
current of Legiflative power isunitorm.  Thole who niade, can alone an-
null a law, and 1t a refarmation is produced, it muft be by applyinz to the
Jeaiflature.  1f the applicalionis made with force, or menaces, the Englifh
writers declarey and we may f{afely allow that it would be an act of levy-
ing war. But where 15 the analogy between that cafey, and the cafe of
reliding a fubo.dinate oflicer, while executing his part of a particular
law ¢

Now gentlemen, I challenge the profecuting council to {ay, in what
part of the evideice 1t has appeared, that thele mfurgents went further
tliau to declare that the law didnot pleale them ; that though they did not
mean to compel Congrels to repeal ity they had fome doubts, and wifhed
t> afcertain whether it exilted or pot; to know whether the country it
aeneral had fubmitted to 1t to know whether General Wathington was
tot diffatisfied with ity and tofee whether they coull not get the afleflor
annointed by themitlves.  Under thefe impreffions many irregularities oc-
curred, but I afk the adverfe conacil to point out if they have difcovered
through the whole courfe of the bulinels, any nifurrection exifting, any
traitorous defizn, tll the meeing ar Bethlehem; or whether ol that
moment the people of Northamton could be faid to have been guiley of
any crune !

We are told that the cale of thz welterniafurgents in 1794, is n paint ;
and that the decilions uno the trials that then took plarze, a,e presedcnt:;
on the prefent occafion ; but, with great deference,y I declare that it {eems
mmpotlible to bring cafes mye ditlimilar into view, where violence
Ras bzen committed in both, At this flage of the argument howevery 1
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ihall only remark, that whatever may have been the Janguage of the judge,
who then prefided, I am fure the attorney of the diftri@ will be geod
enough to recolledt, and candid enough to ftate, that the oppolition, though
in its origin, excited againft the excife law, was conducted with the avow-
ed purpole of fupprefling all the excife offices, and compelling Congrefs to
repeal the act.  See 2 Dallas Rep. 346,

Let us for a moment, gentlemen, trace the motives of the people, by
Janking at thelr conduct not at large, but in the lawlefs {cene ac Bethle-
hem. Whatdid they do ? why they refcued the marthal’s prifoners ; but the
moment they had effiected the refcue, did they not diperfe ¢ Thewr whele
object then was confmmmated ; for, I muft prefume that they contempla-
ted nothing farther, as I fee them attempt nothing more ; and yet the time
was very favourable to accomplith a more extenfive defign, if it had ever
been meditated.  Men intending to compel, by every hofhle means, the
repeal of a law, when they had in their hands the obnoxious agents of
that law (M. Baltiott, Mr, Eyerly, the marfhal and others) would hardly
have let the moment pafs without fome effort to triumph in their advan-
tace. It was, indced rumoured to be their intention to difpatch Mr. Ey-
evly 5 but where does it appear ¢ Was he not compleatly in their power ?
Was he not conftantly in their view, though he incoryecily fays that he
was conftantly out of their view ! No: I repéat that'the rioters having
accomplithed the refcue, difperfed ; and will you, under fuch circumftances,
in a cafe of life and death, determine that they came to commit ‘treafon ?
rejeCting the plain fact, and adopting a conftructive inference ? Put'if
they proceeded no farther than I have (tated, let us again look to the
Jaw of England, to define their crime, as diftinguifhed from treafon ; and
vou will not ceafe to bear in mind that you muft eftablifh the "diltinction.
Jales pleas vol. 1 p. 133—~4. Bacos’s abridgment vol. 6. pe g13—g—q,

Folter $et. 2. 210 % nlings to mamtain a priva‘e claim of right, ot
1o deltroy particular inclofures, or to break prifons, inorder to releafe par-
¢icular perfons have not been holden to amount to levying war within the
ftatute. -

Upon this principle a rifing of the weaversin London, to deftroy all en.
gine-looms, machines, &c. did not amount to levying ot war—for the judgs
es confidered it merely as a matter of private quarrel between men of
the {fame trade, about a particular c¢ngine, which thole concerned in the
riot thouzht detrimental to them,”

Now, if we {honld be fortunate enough mn the courfe of this bufinefs to
fhow that, however criminal thefe people may be, yet, that taking 1t alto-
pether, their intention was only to acquire information, to fee what really
was the ftete of the country, and to procure townlhip officers of their own
appotntment @ 1f fo, though they achieved the refeue, we have done with
the indictment for treafon ; the verdiét mufl conform to the evidence, and
the judpment to the veidict,  That the oience is an aggravated mifde-
sncanour, 1 will not deny ; but it ought to bedift.aguithed from L'reafon ;
and, [ think, I fhall foon evince that 1t never was within the view of our
lepitlature to conlider it as the treafon contemplated by the coaftitution.
Give me leave, then, to afk (and I beg, gentlemen,y as this is a matter of
conltrution, that vou, who are to fix the mtention, will give candid at-
tention) whether the facts prove more than the breaking open a particuiar
prifon, il order to refcue particular prifoners { Was not the matter of 2
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partial, focal nature, to make a particular, and not a general refcue; for
which a particular prifon (if it may be fo deferibed) was violated ! And
as ta the previous oppofition what was it more than a partial obfiruction
of particular officers, to prevent in a particular townihip, tbe executicn of
a particular law. At Kline’s the people {aid to the ex-affeflors, « we will
not let you come into our townfhip ’till we know whether it is a law or
not ; and if we muft be afleffed, it fhall be by afleflors of our own townthip.”
A gentleman in bebalf of the profecution has told us, that we are to re-
ceive as authority all the adjudications given to the term “ levying war”
in England ¢ But if I can produce an authority higher than the Englith
parliamerits, or the Englifh courts to prove that the prefent cafe ought not
to be included in the defcription of treafon, I prefume he will not reject
it becaufe 1t 1s American : I mean the authority of our own legiflature.
Before, however, I turn to the act of Congrels, I will attraét your atten-
tion, geotlemen, by one propofition. If the legiflature has exphcitly
claffed an offence under a particular head in the penal code, it Is incen-
{iftent and abfurd to fearch for it, and punifh it under another head. For
inftance, if the legiflature has declared that refcuing prifoners, not under
{entence of death, fhould be punifhable only with fine and imprifonment,
it would be imconfiftent, by arguing, in a circle, that a refcue with force
and numbers, isa combination for the puwpofe ot preventing the execution
of a law, and that fuch a combination is treafon, by levying war. 1 Hales
pleas 151. Keyling 7:. Fofter p. 200. Set. 7.

If the offence to which I refer had been treafon, it would not have
confilted with the wifdom of the legiflature to make it a mifdemeunour:
and on this ground it is, that I now alk you to reflect, which fpecies of
levying war, the diredt or the conftruttive, was wiihin the view of the
framers of our conflitution ? Did they not intend to exclude every de-
fcription of conftruttive treafon ? But to proceed ; if I can demonfirate,
that every thing which has occurred of a criminal nature, from the com-
mencement of the bufinefs, to its conflummation, and regarding every pre-
vious difcontent as tending to the particular refcue at Betblebem (which
1s the utmoft the oppofite council will pretend) has been confidered by the

legiflature of the United States, (whefe a&ts I repeat, are entitled to more
refpect than all the Britilh aothorities, parliamentary or judictal) as high
mildemeanours, and not as treafon ; then I am entitled to inhilty that the con-
ftitutional provifion does not embrace the cafe ; or it it does embrace the
cafe that Congrefs, poflefling the power to declare the punilhment of trea-
lon, has limited the punifhiment of one {pecies of the offence at leaft, to
fine and nnprifonment. Liften to the a&t, « If any perfon or perfons fhall
knowingly and wilfully obltruét, refitt or cppofe any ofiicer ot the United
States in ferving, or attempting to ferve or execute any melne, proceis,
or warrant, or any rule or order of any of the courts of the United States,
or any other legal or judicial writ or precels whatfoever, or fhall affauls,
beat or wound any officer, or other perfon duly authorieed in ferving or
executing any writ, rule, order, procefs or warrant aforefaid, every perfen
lo knowingly and wilfully cflending in the premifes, {hally on convicticn
thereof, be imprifoned not exceeding twelve months, and fined not exceen-
g three hundred dollars.” Shall it be contended then, that obfiructinz
the marfhal, who was employed in {erving precels, confirtutes the cre
of treafon ! If it did {o, there was no kind of neceffity for this luw.

k!
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Y. .uere an ingredient in the whole of the condud&, while ob[trué’nng
the marfhal in thc fervice of his procefs, that is not embraccd in this le-
giflative defcription ? But let us take another ftep : the procefs is exe-
cuted, the prifoners are apprehended, and atually in the cultody of the
marfhal ; and if it is treafon, under the Conftitution, to take them out of
his cuﬁod ys would Congrels be jultifiable in treating the offence fimply as
a4 mifdemeanour ¢ And vet fuLh abfurdity is imputed to the national le-
giflature, fince in the 23d {ection of the fame law, it is enatted, that ¢ if
any perfon, or perfons fhall by force {et at liberty, or relcue any perfon,
who [hall be found guilty of treafon, murder, or any other capital crime,
or refcue any perlon convicted of any of the faid crimes, goiig to exccu-
tion, or during execution, every peifon fo offending, and being convitied
thereof, fhall fuffer death : and if any perfon fhally by force, ir.:t at hberty,
or refcue any perion who betote conviction fhall ﬂand committed for any
of the capital offences alorefud ; or if any perfon or perfons f{hall by foice
{et at llbcrty, or relcue any | ']LliD n committed fﬁr, or convicted of dNy other
offence againft the Ulited SLH..LS, every perfon fo offending fhull, on con-
viction, be fined, not exceediny soo dotlars, and imprifoned not exceeding
one year,” I'hus, if a malefactor was atually under the gallows when
refcued, the releue would have been but a capital offence ; and the fame
confequence is now astempted, where the perfons refcued had been admitted
to their parole, and werein cultody of the officer, merely upon mefne pro-
cefs. It was a matter of honour that made them relign themf{elves to his
cuftedy, and it was, n effect, @ matter of form that he kept them in cuf-
tody : for, we find, that as he took their parole to meet him at Bethle-
hem, fo at the moment of the refcue, he took their parole to meet him
in_Philadelnhia, which they have all pundtually done,

Here then you find, gentlemen, that we have two of the prominent fea-
tures of this cale reduced to the form of politive law: to wit, the ob-
firuction of the marthal in the fervice of his procefs, and the refcue of
prifoners from his cuftody, But there is another circumitance to which I
would wifh, likewie, to lead your attentions  You find there wwas an in-
difpolitinn to allow a particular clals of othcers to make the affeMments ;
and the people urged, that 1t 1t was to be done, it {hould be done by their
own afletlors.  In this mmporoant puint, therefore, the particular cthcers,
atd not the vy, form the object of relentment and oppofitien. On this
diftintion, 1 have the reipecied authority of Mr. Bradford, the late attor-
ney generz! of the United Statesy, for allerting chat the offence was riat,
not treafon. Lo his argument in the United States oo Mitchel (2 Dullas
Rep. 3¢4.) he ftates that *an oppolitien was lately made to the appointment
“ of a particular judge, in Miglin couuty, and he was {orcibly driven frem
“the beache Bur the offence was profecutzd merely as a not, upon this
* principle ol defertmmation, that the defizn was not to prevent the go-

“ernor from appoliuag any judge, but only to difplace an wnpopular
Coindividuals”  So even of the o, PeD '11.11 .’.\.;L.[Tuls, imttead of beiny fan‘-—

warned not to enter the townlhip, had been forcibly expelled ir{,m It the

ctience weuld not Lave Leen ticaton, but riot.

I 2m arrbved, howey-r, ty the lalt and conclufive evidence of the {enfe
of Conarels Upon tis {uvjet: from whieh it will be proved that the fame
cautiousy and o refpect o pamthment, the fame benevolent, legiflature,

rad conlidered all that the inpenuity of any gentleman can fuggeflt as



